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Financial Highlights and Calendar
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Turnover increased by 19.2% to HK$1,436.0 million

EFMEH12. 2% EE11.9%

Gross profit margin slightly dropped from 12.2% to 11.9%
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Profit attributable to equity shareholders increased by 19.3% to
HK$101.0 million

BEERFRE R EF29.0781L
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The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of
HK29.0 cents (2007: HK24.0 cents) per share. To mark the
Group's 35th anniversary, the Board of Directors recommends a
special dividend of HK12.0 cents (2007: nil) per share. Total dividend
for the year amounts to HK60.0 cents (2007: HK40.0 cents) per
share

FRERENA7.02BI(ZEZT +
F : 66.85781Il)

Basic earnings per share were HK79.02 cents (2007: HK66.85
cents)

RHAZEE N —EE+F+—AZ++H
Interim results announcement 27 November 2007

R HRAS B B BR —EELF+-A=-+—H
Paid date of the interim dividend 21 December 2007
2FEEENM —ZEENFEANE
Annual results announcement 9 July 2008
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Closure of register of members for the proposed

final and special dividends

—EEN\FNAZTHBEZE
—EENFNAZTNH
(BEEMABIEEAN)

25 August 2008 to 28 August 2008
(both days inclusive)

BRERBRFAE

Annual general meeting

—EENFNAZTNH
28 August 2008

REA K2 il B B R 3%

Payable date of the final and special dividends

T \FNAAEA
5 September 2008
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$1,436.0 million, representing an increase of 19.2% over the
previous year (2007: HK$1,204.9 million). Gross profit margin of
the Group recorded a mild decrease to 11.9% (2007: 12.2%).
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group reached
HK$101.0 million (including HK$8.7 million of write back of loans
from minority shareholders of non-wholly owned subsidiaries), up
from HK$84.7 million in the preceding year. Basic earnings per
share were HK79.02 cents (2007: HK66.85 cents).
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DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK29.0 cents
(2007: HK24.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2008.
To mark the Group'’s 35th anniversary, the Board recommends to pay
a special dividend of HK12.0 cents (2007: nil) per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK19.0 cents (2007: HK16.0 cents) per
share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year ended
31 March 2008 amounts to HK60.0 cents (2007: HK40.0 cents)
per share, representing a total distribution of approximately 75%
(excluding special dividend, approximately 60%) of the Group’s
profit for the year. The proposed final dividend together with the
special dividend will be paid on or before 5 September 2008 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company at the close of business on 28 August 2008.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Strong recognition of the “Fairwood” brand and delivery of
innovative and high quality services and products are the core
attributes of the Group through which a stable growth was achieved
during the year despite a challenging operational environment. The
Group continued its effort to enhance the value of the “Fairwood”
brand in its second 3-year plan since the launch of the re-branding
campaign in November 2003. Marketing strategies targeted at
young and affluent customers were adopted. The latest advertising
campaign delivered via various media featuring young celebrities
was shot in India for promoting one of the innovative products
of the Group - the Indian curry chicken. The marketing activities
coupled with mouth-watering products helped the Group achieve
a higher headcount and average spending.

During the year, the fast food industry in Hong Kong remained
highly competitive. Amongst the various challenges, the substantial
rise in food costs especially in the second half of the year was a
major factor which caused the reduction in the overall gross profit
margin despite the effort of the Group to enhance revenue and
improve operation efficiency. Alongside with special sales promotion
campaigns explored to maintain growth in the sales, the Group
also implemented several initiatives to combat the rise in food costs
throughout the year which included reasonable selling price increase
as well as adjustments of menu and sourcing mix. Purchasing was
increasingly made from countries with raw materials of high quality
but less significant rises in price.

With regard to its operations in the Mainland China, the Group
reported a sales growth of 28.8% when compared with the past
year. Profit margin in the Mainland China market was depressed by
the combined effect of inflation, rise in food costs and new labour
contract law which was promulgated and took effect during the
year. In particular, the Group had incurred additional administrative
expenses to enhance its support functions in the Mainland China.

8 RIRTEEBERRE
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The Group achieved a stable growth during the year in terms of
the expansion of its network of outlets in a rental market with
continual increase of rental. During the year, the Group revised its
network to cover a number of prime locations in Hong Kong by
opening new outlets in high-traffic shopping malls. The effort to
continually revise its network of outlets had brought higher sales
per store, thereby mitigating the impact of rising operating costs.
The opening of an outlet at the Hong Kong International Airport is
a representative highlight of network expansion, through which the
Group is able to bring its brand name and products to customers
of various nationalities.

In the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group opened a total of
13 new fast food outlets including 9 in Hong Kong and 4 in the
Mainland China. As at the year end, the total outlets operated
by the Group numbered 106, comprising 86 fast food outlets, 3
Buddies Cafes and 5 specialty restaurants in Hong Kong and 12 fast
food outlets in the Mainland China.
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PROSPECTS

The business climate in Hong Kong in the
coming year will remain challenging. Factors
inclusive of high oil price, global inflation,
appreciation of Renminbi (RMB), shortage of
food supply and high rental are expected to
put continuous pressure on the profitability of
the Group in the coming year.

In order to face the challenges ahead, the
Group pays attention to its fundamentals
including the improvement of infrastructure.
The Group is now in the implementation stage
of the second phase of the SAP Enterprise
Resources Planning (ERP) system with the
expectation of benefiting from the advantages
brought by a more comprehensive information
system. Further and to cope with the long-
term business growth, the Group is also
actively searching for a new site in Hong Kong
to set up a new central food processing plant
to replace the existing one in operation. It is
expected that the new central food processing
plant will bring an improved economy of scale
to the production capacity of the Group and
will eventually enhance product offerings and
production efficiency in support of the long
term growth of the Group.

In terms of product and service offerings, the Group is committed
to be a trend setter and leader in the fast food industry in Hong
Kong. Throughout its history, the Group has been innovative in both
the development and presentation of its food products. Fairwood
was the first fast food chain in Hong Kong to introduce instantly
brewed coffee and it was soon adopted by the industry at large as a
trend. Recently, the Group has also achieved another breakthrough
to establish a healthy food image by way of launching the “No
MSG (monosodium glutamate) added” series in response to the
increasing health consciousness of the general public. In view of
the positive response of the “No MSG added” series, the Group
will continue with its effort in product development to enrich its
product portfolio and is confident that the most discerning tastes
of its customers would be met.

Apart from the Hong Kong market, the Group will continue its
expansion plan at a cautious pace in the Mainland China which is
part of the major goal of its second 3-year plan. In order to meet
needs of the existing and the upcoming new outlets in Mainland
China, arrangements have been made to support the Group's
outlets by a central kitchen facility in Guangdong province. The
facility of the central kitchen in Mainland China is provided by a
joint operation partner of the Group while the production is under
strict supervision and control of the Group. Apart from production,
the Group will also focus on the promotion of the image of the
“Fairwood” brand and building of market awareness in Mainland
China. By means of adjusting the pricing and presentation of the
products of the Group to suit local tastes and preferences, it is
expected to further broaden the customer base in the Mainland
China.

APPRECIATION

| wish to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and
staff members for their dedication, diligence and contributions
over the past year. | would also like to express my gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their support. Our
fundamental focus to enhance the Group’s performance with the
goal of achieving long-term prosperity and generating best possible
returns for our investors remains unchanged.

AE
By Order of the Board

PPN
=ICT

ERE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
FERITIKAAH

Chairman and Chief Executive
78 —ZEZ/N\FLANHE
Hong Kong, 9 July 2008
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total assets of HK$625.3 million
(2007: HK$577.8 million). The Group’s working capital was HK$16.6
million (2007: HK$8.1 million), represented by total current assets
of HK$248.7 million (2007: HK$226.5 million) against total current
liabilities of HK$232.1 (2007: HK$218.4 million). The current ratio,
being the proportion of total current assets against total current
liabilities, was 1.1 (2007: 1.0). The total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$370.0 million (2007:
HK$333.8 million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position. At
31 March 2008, the Group had net cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$178.1 million (2007: HK$115.2 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash flows
and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2008, the Group had
total bank loans of HK$3.4 million (2007: HK$6.4 million) which
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and repayable within 5
years. The unutilised banking facilities were HK$274.3 million
(2007: HK$260.9 million). The gearing ratio of the Group was 0.1%
(2007: 1.0%), which was calculated based on the non-current
bank loans over total equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company.

The Group's receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The impact of the fluctuation in exchange rate
is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

Charges on Group's Assets

At 31 March 2008, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for liabilities amounted to HK$59.8 million (2007: HK$58.5
million).

RREEEERDEF]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Commitments

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2008 of
HK$2.4 million (2007: HK$10.0 million) were mainly related to store
renovations. The Group also had other outstanding commitments of
HK$0.6 million (2007: HK$1.4 million) in respect of the contracting
fee for operation of a fast food restaurant.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2008, guarantees are given to banks by the Company
in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities extended
to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of the Company at
the balance sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of the
facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantee, being HK$31.9 million (2007: HK$33.2 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

Employee Information

At 31 March 2008, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,520 (2007: 4,250) in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Employees’ remunerations are commensurate
with their job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually basing on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonuses to eligible staff, basing on the
performance of the Group and the individual employee. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.

13
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 56, is the Company’s Chairman
and Chief Executive. He graduated from the Parsons School of
Design with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended
a course on food and beverage management at New York
University. After the completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in
1977, Mr Lo returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood
Fast Food Limited. In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of
the Company. Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company
from 1991 to 1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief
Executive of the Company in January 2000 and is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lo is also a director
of Neblett Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is the brother-in-law of Mr
Herald Lau Ling Fai, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company.

Mr Ng Chi Keung?*, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1994. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and is an Associate Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 30 years' experience in finance
and management. Prior to joining the Company, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local
and overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng was appointed
a Director of the Company in November 1995. He is also the
Secretary of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 54, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group in 1995. Mr Chan received
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University
of Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau
in 1987. He has over 28 years’ experience in marketing. Before
joining the Group, Mr Chan worked as a senior executive for a
restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He was appointed a Director of the Company in
January 1998.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai®, aged 67, joined the Company in 1991.
He has been practising as a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong for over 30 years and has extensive experience in auditing,
finance, taxation and administration. Mr Lau was a partner in
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong until his retirement on 30
June 2001. He is also an independent non-executive director of
each of Kerry Properties Limited, Wheelock Properties Limited and
China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (Beijing). Mr Lau is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is the brother-in-law of Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung, the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company.

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin"#, aged 60, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in 1991. He has over 30
years' experience in human resources development in public,
commercial and educational sectors. Mr Chan graduated from
The University of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde and
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Master of Education Degree. Mr
Chan is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Human Resources
Management. He is currently Director of the Student Development
Services, City University of Hong Kong.

Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam’, aged 54, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in November 1995. Mr
Lee holds a Master of Business Administration Degree and has
extensive experience in corporate finance and investment banking.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen# aged 55, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2000. Dr Lau
had spent over 12 years in finance related work in the private
and public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in
1987. Dr Lau holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a MBA degree
from the University of Calgary in Canada. He is a member of
The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society
of Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau has
been the Chairman and Chief Executive of Giordano International
Limited since 1994.

*  Member of the Audit Committee
# Member of the Remuneration Committee
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The Board has pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008.

Principal Place of Business

Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is situated at Canon'’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and principal
place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP Commercial Centre, 18
Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in pages 128 to 130 of this Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30 per cent of the
Group’s total turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 130.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$101,027,000 (2007: HK$84,669,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK19.0 cents (2007: HK16.0 cents) per
share was paid on 21 December 2007. The Board now recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK29.0 cents (2007: HK24.0
cents) per share and a special dividend of HK12.0 cents (2007: nil)
per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008.

1 RREEEERDEF]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



EEER
AEBRFARNZEESIBNEEAB 20,000
TT(ZZEZAF : BH10,0007T) °

BEESE
FABEEENEBHIEHNY B REM T
13

Bz

FR ARBARBEBAEXZMERAT
(M2 DBBARR B - FiB EIEH AR
ML - ARBNFATNGE LB E
EITEMEITRG - BRARRRNF AR
AEEFBEERIINP B IRERM 27

BE
AP BEEMBEEARENHAHRIINES
eRENT

WITE=S

EFG (ZERITHARE)
R

PR &K

BYFRITES
2=
BRERF
FHRE
2|42

BIEA N F) A E 12 4 Bl 55109 K 58 189(viii)
& REFEERTHILEBREEERH
MRREAFAS EWESR FHEHBSALEE
BEEBREM  MEEFLEFTEERTRER
R BRAMNBRERAFAS EERET -

BYGFRTESTNEEREFHR_FTTN
FOA—HE - BE=%F - RIEARFN
SRAA - AR ARBNBRREFAE
t@WESE  WAIEREE -

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$20,000 (2007: HK$10,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
All the shares purchased were cancelled. Shares were also issued
during the year on exercise of share options. Details of movements
in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ng Chi Keung

Chan Chee Shing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Herald Lau Ling Fai

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lee Sheung Yam

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

In accordance with Bye-Laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Peter
Lee Sheung Yam will not offer himself for re-election whereas Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 1 April 2006 and are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.
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(a) AR

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executives of the Company and their associates
in the issued share capital of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

BRAERRI THEER
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

HERT

ReoE

BAL

Percentage

BARRE ZhEx QFABE  Hiegx of total

Personal Family Corporate Other ay issued

interests  interests  interests  interests Total shares

ERE Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 3,451,105 - - 51,984,279 55435384  43.61%
(Fr1)
(Note 1)

R Ng Chi Keung 1,254,000 - - - 1,254,000 0.99%

B Chan Chee Shing 165,000 - - - 165,000 0.13%

MizE1 1t & % 15 2 BNeblett Investments Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited

Limited ([Neblett )55 + Neblett;2
—BNERBAEARBESESR
WEMERBEENAR - RS
SEEREERZEMOMERRY
KW XFBARRMERFE
FTIRABEL - #4548 Y A NeblettFr
HERDMER -

(“Neblett”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as a
discretionary object and as the Chairman and Chief Executive
of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Neblett.

RREEEERDEF]
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(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited

BEREEEEIOTHERERELRH
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10 each

BARER Rz DRI HitE s my
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests Total

% Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(FiIEE2)
(Note 2)

M52 ¢ 2R 19 2 B Pengto International
Limited ([ Pengto])# % - Pengto
R—EUERBTERMBER
HENEAMERBEN AR -
ERGEEREERZETHNH
BERESERNOER  XHFRAEA
AR R RATARHE, - R AE
BB PengtofTiF A I AiE= -

Lt PR E SIS RIFR

B _balt 2 & T X[ R RT 8 | — B P I R &
SN AR BIRIRRE 77 IR F 35216 R E
FOELMBTR - SURRIEESTRIAE M7
AAXRRRRBRAAR  RZTTNF=
A=1t—B ARBEEFNZRSTHRABS
ERMEMNEESRAR T N\RNTFL - 58
BHRAEARRREARER(ANAFEFK
FIEXVERFTE A E ) RO D ~ AEREAR (D 3k
EREEN T AR BRERIORE

EERERITRABRBARBBIE S
A e o B8N T X[ BB RT 8 | —

# -

Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited (“Pengto”),
a company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by
virtue of his interest in the trust as a discretionary object and as
the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company, was deemed
to be interested in the shares held by Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
Directors or Chief Executives of the Company or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age had any other interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests under the
Company’s share option scheme are set out in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18 September
2002 under which the Directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Director) or any employee
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, supplier of goods or services, customer,
contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the share; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of offer. As at 31 March 2008, the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the share
option scheme is 12,660,828 shares being 10 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 23 August 2006, the date on
which the refreshment of the mandate limit under the share option
scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
maximum entitlement for any one participant under the share
option scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed one per cent of the shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Directors and employees
of the Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31 March
2008 was HK$8.80) granted for HK$1 consideration under the
share option scheme of the Company. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$1 each of the Company.
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eighte!
average price
Closing price of closing
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of per share price per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted cancelled  exercised outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable  during during  at 31 March price per of grant  of exercise
2007 the year granted period  the year the year 2008 share  of options  of options
T (%) - 4000  ZERHE WRCZZTN\FT-A-H - - 4000 99T EM9TT -
NgCtheung(D|rector) T-AZR  EZE-MET-A=1AH HKS9.97  HK$9.72
3 December 2007 BRNSHIE
Exercisable in
five batches
during the
period from
1 December 2008 to
30 November 2014
A (2%) 250,000 - ITECF AR-ZEME—A-H - (250,000 - B0 EB0TST  A%10.80T
Chan Chee Shing (Director) ZAtE EIETN\E{-A=T-A HKS1.00  HK$0.75  HK$10.80
7 February 2003 BRD4ATIE
Bxercisable in
four batches
during the
period from
1 January 2004 to
31 December 2008
A (£%) - 4000 ZEFTHE TRCETNETCR - - 400000 EWO9TT  AM9TL -
Chan Chee Shing (Director) TZA=R  ZZT-WE{T-A= E HK$9.97 HK$9.72
3 December 2007 BRANSAIE
Exercisable in
five batches
during the
period from
1 December 2008 to
30 November 2014
B8 164,500 - ~3%0fF TR-FEME-A-H (10,000 (133,500 21,000 B0 AM0TST EEI09TT
Employees ZRtB EITIN\F{-A=T-H HKS1.00  HKS0.75  HKS$10.97
7 February 2003 HESAATE
Exercisable in
four batches
during the
period from
1 January 2004 to
31 December 2008
E& 700,000 —ZEmE TR-FZ/ 5-A- - (700,000) - BEL075T AET EE1070T
Employee NAZE Z-TENET-A :‘I'—E HK$2075  HK$210  HK$10.70
2 August 2004 BRNIMRIE

Exercisable in
three batches
during the

period from

1 January 2006 to
31 December 2008
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average price
Closing price of closing
Number o Number of Number of ~ Numberof ~ Number of per share price per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted cancelled exercised  outstanding Exercise  beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable  during during  at31 March price per ofgrant  of exercise
2007 the year granted period  the year the year 2008 share  ofoptions  of options
[E8 400,000 - ZEEmE URCEERFAACTER - (1000000 300000 #¥23257 EE23/T ABII9L
Employee NA-B EZEEREAA-T-H HKS2325  HK$235  HK$9.79
1 September 2004 BRI
Exercisable in
four batches
during the
period from
23 September 2005 to
22 September 2009
8 480,000 - Sl TR=TEAE A RA - (120,000) 30000 AE3sor  AE3som  AE10467
Employee MA-+hA e Y HK$3.50 HKS350  HK$10.46
25 April 2005 BAIHIE
Exercisable in
five batches
during the
period from
14 June 2006 to
13 June 2013
&8 - 3390,000 53t ARZFFNETZA-B (90,000 - 330000 E®99TT  EEOTT -
Employees +ZA=A ETT-MET-A=1A HK$9.97 HK$9.72
3 December 2007 BEAHE
Exercisable in
five batches
during the
Eeriodfrom
1 December 2008 to
30 November 2014

BERCE TERENS T BERMEIRBEIRE
IEEFIHENER - 2 BIF R I 15 R
FE1(0)(i) FFEE24 ©

B B ESN  RAFEREAERE - AT
SEEAMBARIERA 2 EEMRE - &
EARBEELHZDITEABHAEAMBFIH
FEEIAm T N\RNFLAEBBALRR
Al EAEAREOA B (AR & E5 G PIFTE
R &) IR SR IEHERE T 2 o

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(o)ii)
and note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or Chief Executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and the Chief Executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company,
were as follows:

BEER HERITRG

BEFEENR G HHYFILE

Shares directly Percentage

B and/or of total

Note indirectly held issued shares

() Neblett (1 51,984,279 40.90%
(iy SEIEGRAR]

Jumbo Easy Limited (1 51,984,279 40.90%

(i) Winning Spirit International Corp (1) 51,984,279 40.90%

(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (1) 51,984,279 40.90%

(v) Veer Palthe Voute NV (2) 10,124,000 7.97%

(vi) Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft (2) 10,124,000 7.97%

(vii)  Allianz SE 2) 10,124,000 7.97%

(viii)  Lloyd George Investment Management (Bermuda) Limited 9,749,000 7.67%

(ix)  Allard Partners Limited 9,087,000 7.15%

(x) Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 7,792,000 6.13%

N HtEEZHEBR — KM LB
Neblett #f B o Neblett& — [ BB Winning
Spirit International Corp2 A AT °
ZRWinning Spirit International Corpfl:2&
—MEHSBC International Trustee Limited
LZEAFHE2ERBHAR  ©REIEER
AR —HBERBLTEEZERBHNAR
MEBEZEANeblett{ErEHM BB EE S
R HAEAR BB Neblett FTHF IR (D BUAE RS ©
HSBC International Trustee Limited/EAE
# B Neblett{EFERIRFEA - MR 2T
B Neblett PR 7 B9 #E 5 »

) hEERHEIBR —HKH - W R/Veer
Palthe Voute NVIERIZELLIRATIFMAR
5 ° Veer Palthe Voute NV7ZDresdner Bank
Aktiengesellschaft®) 2 & K& A &) » fDresdner
Bank Aktiengesellschaftfl;ZAllianz SEff#:1%55
81.10%1E == MM B A F] » It + Dresdner
Bank AktiengesellschaftflAllianz SEX9 445 Al &
Veer Palthe Voute NVET# % {0 ) #E%S ©

FRFERERIGRER °

Notes:

M

@)

These interests represented the same block of shares and were held
by Neblett. Neblett was a company wholly-owned by Winning Spirit
International Corp, which in turn was a company wholly-owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited in the capacity of trustee. Jumbo
Easy Limited was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue
of its capacity of a discretionary object of the trust which beneficially
owned Neblett and being a wholly-owned company of Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Neblett in the capacity of trustee of the
trust which beneficially owned Neblett.

These interests represented the same block of shares and were shares
in which Veer Palthe Voute NV was interested as an investment
manager. Veer Palthe Voute NV was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft which was in turn a subsidiary in
which Allianz SE indirectly held 81.10 per cent controlling interests.
Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft and Allianz SE were thereby deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which Veer Palthe Voute NV was
interested.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
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(a) EZ Front Land Properties Limited ([ Front
Land]) U E
1E N BF 75 3R 2R M 5E31(d) AT At - KR
THREBR AT Front Land 5] 7 —
HHEEWR  RHEE —BWET Front
land MIRX ST - IHE AHES B
163,800 HEIZIEYE H-_TTH
FNA—BREE - BEMFEF o Front
Land IRKRERHEARERBEE
HE L EMBRITEMEBE AL - BIF
HEWZ  KRREREBR A AERME
MIBE AR - O] AR W BIRR fE MR &
Hafk=F¥ R KRREFREBR
A AIE A Front Land 1T B IB4E 44
BHZYE B-ZTTEN\F-_A—HR
qu BE—F¥ c RIRVEREBRAA
MZYECNOEES RIZSFBOT

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2008.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Continuing Connected Transactions

The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy agreement with Front Land Properties Limited (“Front
Land”)
As detailed in note 31(d) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited entered into a tenancy agreement with Front
Land to lease back a property upon the completion of the sale of
the property to Front Land at a monthly rental of HK$163,800
for a term of two years and six months commencing on 1
August 2005. The ultimate beneficial owners of Front Land are
Mr Lo Hoi Chun, who is a cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung,
and his associate. Under the tenancy agreement, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited is granted two options to renew the tenancy
for an aggregate term of three years and six months after the
expiry of the initial term. During the year, Fairwood Fast Food
Limited has exercised the first option to renew the tenancy with
Front Land for a term of one year and six months commencing
from 1 February 2008. Details of the rent and deposits paid
by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the property are as
follows:

—EBENE —EELF

2008 2007

BT BB T

HK$'000 HK$'000

REEHE Rent for the year 1,966 1,966
R=A=+—HMHELIEXE  Rental deposits at 31 March 491 491
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(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International Limited

(“New Champion”)

As detailed in note 31(b) to the financial statements, during
the year, Fairwood Fast Food Limited leased a property from
New Champion. New Champion is wholly beneficially owned
by Pengto, which in turn is a company beneficially owned by a
trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his wife, Madam Cindy
Lau Shuk Ching are directors of New Champion. Details of rent
and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the
property are as follows:

—EENF —EELF

2008 2007

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

KEEHE Rent for the year 1,247 1,247
R=A=+—HMELIZE Rental deposits at 31 March 330 330
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MBS AR RIS 14AZ B B8 €2 Front
land MIFEBFERXFIHEERT - N
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In compliance with the conditional waivers granted to the
Company by the Stock Exchange from strict compliance with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the continuing connected transaction with
Front Land and in compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in connection with the continuing connected transaction
with New Champion, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed and confirmed that both transactions with Front
Land and New Champion (the “Transactions”) are:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms or on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of agreements
governing the Transactions or on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties;
and

25



ETERE

Report of the Directors

vy EEERZIRBE_TTNF=
A=t —BLEFENRETE
BEENERSFELETFE
FRDEGESEET ER ] -
(Hf3E)
BEAN - AR B EBE RS EHA

MX5 YREZSHETE

(i) BRI ECEIURESAH
RHNHAEREARAES
SIE

(il FERESRBRIZMN M

(i) HEXHERBRREAAR S
HY AR B8 f9h a2 19 P 51 D ABRSRE T T
&

(iv) EEAR SHECETBAER
MFE LR K ER o (BEE)
e : BEFEAEEREISHNERAS
#10,000,000Ck AEBH —EE
NEZA=+—"HNFERLEER
HE3% MEPHSEEE MR
BE-_ZZEN\F=ZRA=+—HItF
JE B2 Front Land HYIFEREZ 51
FE LR ABEE1,965,6007T ©

EESAShmiE
SRISERERS | —SHMRNZ S5 5
BRFARBRTAREREBR QAR
& ERUNEEN—MITYE - KIRER
BARARMZEMECNNFAIEEAR
BEFBMT

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transactions for the year ended
31 March 2008 did not exceed the respective maximum
aggregate annual value (“annual cap”) and the maximum
aggregate value (“cap”). (Note)

The auditors of the Company have also reviewed the
Transactions and confirmed to the Board that:

(i) the Transactions were approved by the Board of the
Company at the time the agreements governing the
respective Transactions were entered into;

(i) there was an agreement in place governing each of
the Transactions;

(iii) the rentals charged were in accordance with the terms
set out in the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv) the aggregate dollar amounts of the Transactions did
not exceed the respective annual cap and cap. (Note)

Note:  The cap for the continuing connected transaction with New

Champion is the lower of HK$10 million or 3 per cent of
the book value of the net tangible assets of the Group as
at 31 March 2008 while the annual cap for the continuing
connected transaction with Front Land for the year ended 31
March 2008 is HK$1,965,600.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, New Champion has also
agreed to grant a licence to Fairwood Fast Food Limited to use a
storeroom in Hong Kong during the year. Details of the licence fee
and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the
storeroom are as follows:

—BENF ZETLF

2008 2007

BT BB

HK$'000 HK$'000

REFEFAFEER Licence Fee for the year 180 180
R=A=+—HArEe: Deposits at 31 March 30 30

RREEEERDE]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

26



fr EX—EhFTt &SN
RARAFERIAFEEAEMARRE - 598
BRINARBEEHEEAMNENEFER
BHy -

A A] S E AT B

EERBESH
BRABRENFREARBRIZRBEH
BREM—FTAHBTEABMUAKILS
) o

fRE HEXROF2FMH LHES

Bk B 15 ¥ I sE27 ()i AT it & 5 - R AR
SEEAMBARNFEALEBA - HEX
BROARRN EMES - FATTAQBERD
WRIER TRERErEENEETE -

BEREE
ARRNAREESERAR N EREENL
ERTEEENATE

BITEHRR S
REBR-_ZEZNF=A=+—HHRTE
R EAMEEFFIED B E R IRE M
21%22 -

hFESEEMEERE
AEERBEREMBREENEEMEER
BEMESNAFRFE131TME132H

AL F
AEBZHEREMENFBENLAFRS
1338 °

BFaE
REBIZREBCGRFMEABE ST EEDDHY
BT BEBEBEREHINEHER
WiEES R BHEAESFTE([REST
2l]) - BB EINFBERN T BRE
MIFE23 ©

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung had a service contract
with the Company which may be terminated by either party to the
contract on three months’ notice.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Save as set out in note 27(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year. Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce the
dilutive effect of granting share options.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the law in Bermuda.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group at
31 March 2008 are set out in notes 21 and 22 respectively to the
financial statements.

Five Year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 131 and
132 of the annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown on
page 133 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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By Order of the Board

ERB

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
FIERITEAEZ,

Chairman and Chief Executive
58 —_ZEEN\FLANA
Hong Kong, 9 July 2008

Auditors
KPMG retireand, beingeligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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The Board is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008 with certain deviations
as mentioned below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by Directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material matters
of the Company. With the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. Directors
may choose to take independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making request
to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.

Currently, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ng Chi Keung

Chan Chee Shing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Herald Lau Ling Fai

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lee Sheung Yam

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Biographical details of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this report are set out on pages 14 and
15 of this annual report.

Save that Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Herald Lau Ning Fai are
brothers-in-law, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. In the Board’s opinion,
Mr Herald Lau Ning Fai is able to exercise independent judgment
and integrity in executing his role and responsibility by virtue of his
character, qualifications and experience despite his relationship with
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung. On this basis, the Company considers that
all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

3 RREEEERDEF]
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(Z_TZENEF=A=+—HIEFEAN - H  Fourfull Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
BOITORAERESS SR SAEEME 2008 and attendance of individual Directors is set out below:
FEZIT -

HERE EFRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HITESE Executive Directors
G (EEFITHAEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4
K& Ng Chi Keung 4/4
PR A K Chan Chee Shing 4/4
BYHBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors
EilE Herald Lau Ling Fai 3/4
PRECE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 3/4
=3 e Peter Lee Sheung Yam 4/4
2B 1 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 3/4
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All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group. The statement of the auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out on page 36 and page 37 in the independent
auditor’s report. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws") to appoint any person as a Director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Since
the Board as a whole will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the qualifications, experience, integrity and time
commitment of the proposed candidates, the Company does not
intend to adopt the recommended best practices of the CG Code
to set up a nomination committee.
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Accordingly to the Bye-Laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election; and (i) at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors (other than any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office provided that each Director
(other than any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by the shareholders in accordance with
the Bye-Laws.

The roles of both chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company are presently vested in the same person. For the reasons
as explained in the next section, the Board considers that it would be
in the best interest of the Company to continue such arrangement,
and to continue the exemption of both the chairman and the
managing director (the chief executive officer) of the Company
from any retirement by rotation provisions.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive
officer and Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung currently holds both positions.
In view of the extensive experience of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
in the industry and the fact that the day-to-day management of
the Group is led by him, the Board believes that this arrangement
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, efficiency
usage of resources and enables effective planning, formulation
and implementation of long-term strategies and business plans.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority is
adequately ensured by the operation of the Board.
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Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-Laws, the chairman and the managing director of
the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation. For the
same reasons as set out above, the Board considers that it would
be in the best interest of the Company to continue the exemption
of both the chairman and the managing director (the chief
executive officer) of the Company from such retirement by rotation
provisions.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code and
are posted on the Company’s website and available to shareholders
upon request. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration packages of the Directors and other
related matters. The Remuneration Committee convened one
meeting during the year.

The attendance of individual members at the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:

HERE, EBRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BYFBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors
BREEF (F /%) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 11
2B Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 0/1
HITEE Executive Director
RER Ng Chi Keung 11
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai, Mr Peter Lee
Sheung Yam and Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin who are all Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai and meets at least twice a year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has adopted written terms of reference which are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website
and available to shareholders upon request.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review unaudited interim accounts and
audited annual accounts; to review the remuneration of external
auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their independence
and the nature and scope of the audit; to review the internal audit
programme, findings and management’s responses; and to evaluate
the internal control and risk management system of the Company.

The attendance of individual members at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out below:

HERY, BB
Attendance/Number of Meetings

BUFHITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

REE (L) Herald Lau Ling Fai (Chairman) 2/2
PRECHF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 1/2
s Peter Lee Sheung Yam 212
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors of the Company were as follows:

REME x|
Nature of services Amount
BT
(HK$'000)
—EEAE/CEE\ERHEEERE Review fee for 2007/08 interim results 410
“ETLE/CET)\ERFEERERE Audit fee for 2007/08 final results 2,340
BERUTERENIEEGZRYE Non-audit services which covered provision of 440
tax compliance services
k] Total 3,190
AERES IR Internal Controls
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The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensure maintenance of proper books and records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and
to ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The
Board conducts regular reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relation communications. Designated executive directors
and senior management maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. The Board also welcomes the views
of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages
them to attend shareholders’ meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Fairwood Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 38 to 130, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31
March 2008, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely toyou, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 9 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
BHE-ZT\F=A=+—HIEFEUABEIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EETNE  —BTLE
2008 2007
B 5 Ft T
Note $'000 $'000
EHER Turnover 3&12 1,435,993 1,204,863
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,265,648) (1,057,825)
EF Gross profit 170,345 147,038
HA KA Other revenue 4 15,703 4,997
H A5 F5E Other net income 4 1,255 5,245
TERER Administrative expenses (70,218) (55,904)
[EE & ERE Net impairment
Bk F5 losses on fixed assets 13(d) (1,968) (7,047)
KEMELE R Valuation gains on
investment properties 13(b) 6,052 1,489
meEER Profit from operations 121,169 95,818
BhE A Finance costs 5(a) (1,361) (2,829)
BB B3R A Profit before taxation 5 119,808 92,989
FTiS®t Income tax 6(a) (18,781) (8,320)
AABREERR Profit attributable to equity
i eyl shareholders of the Company 27(a) 101,027 84,669
TEERE : Dividends attributable to the year: 10
FREEIR &I Interim dividend declared
# R ERAR B and paid during the year 24,246 20,290
HEABERDIK Final dividend proposed after
RHEBAR B the balance sheet date 36,861 30,780
HEBBERDIK Special dividend proposed after
BRI B the balance sheet date 15,253 -
76,360 51,070
BREF Earnings per share 11
HA Basic 79.024l cents  66.851lll cents
ME(—ZTZ 4 : ) Diluted (2007: restated) 78.524l cents  65.771lll cents
FASEE130E MM IB A EHRKA —Z8  The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these financial
5o statements.
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REEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
RZZENF=A=+—BABEIR)
At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2T\ —FTLF
2008 2007
B 5T Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
FkREBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 13(a)
—REME — Investment properties 45,374 39,322
—E AP - a3 — Other property, plant
B and equipment 261,578 238,085
306,952 277,407
5l Goodwill 14 1,001 1,001
2 He%Ee Rental deposits paid 29,261 31,897
HEemEE Other financial assets 16 39,345 40,439
EEFRIEE E Deferred tax assets 25(b) 25 488
376,584 351,232
REBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 17(a) 28,414 18,023
JEWBR AR EMEU L Trade and other receivables 18 41,933 34,248
A Yz [B] A EFR X Current tax recoverable 25(a) 294 118
EemEE Other financial assets 16 = 58,960
BEMIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 178,052 115,197
248,693 226,546
REBEE Current liabilities
JETERFAEALE(IZ Trade and other payables 20 219,758 199,907
BHEAIBITER Current portion of
B BNERER 5> secured bank loans 21 3,000 3,000
HER Other loans 22 = 8,711
e AN ERTR IR Current tax payable 25(a) 4,612 4,797
P Provisions 26 4,691 2,053
232,061 218,468
REBEEFE Net current assets 16,632 8,078
EERAERABER Total assets less current liabilities 393,216 359,310
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REEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
RZZENF=A=+—BABEIR)
At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EBENE —EELF
2008 2007
B 5T Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
kREBERE Non-current liabilities
HIEMEBITER Secured bank loans 21 350 3,350
EEFRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 25(b) 1,079 30
BHHEES Rental deposits received 1,338 2,961
P Provisions 26 20,496 19,137
23,263 25,478
EEFE Net assets 369,953 333,832
EARNEE Capital and reserves 27(a)
g Share capital 127,106 127,522
G Reserves 242,847 206,310
EATERRR Total equity attributable to equity
BB shareholders of the Company 369,953 333,832

EEGR T N\FLANBZEILFFA]  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

B e

FASEF 130NN B AT SRR —B

7_7\0

N

9 July 2008

#EE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
FERTTEARE,

Chairman and Chief Executive

statements.

REE
Ng Chi Keung
HITEF

Executive Director

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these financial
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BEERER

Balance Sheet
R-ZZTN\F=A=+—HCABEEFIR)
At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EEN\F —EELHF
2008 2007
B 5T Fr Ft
Note $'000 $'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RITE A FH R Interest in subsidiaries 15 349,745 345,680
REEE Current assets
JEUBR AR EMEU X Trade and other receivables 18 88,350 61,528
AU B A ERFR 30 Current tax recoverable 25(a) = 110
REeMRESEED Cash and cash equivalents 19 112 96
88,462 61,734
REEE Current liabilities
JERTBRSAAMEABERIZ  Trade and other payables 20 29,266 29,366
REBEEFE Net current assets 59,196 32,368
EEFE Net assets 408,941 378,048
EARN®E Capital and reserves 27(b)
&N Share capital 127,106 127,522
fEiE Reserves 281,835 250,526
ERBE Total equity 408,941 378,048

B 9 July 2008
‘RS RER
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Ng Chi Keung
FIBHRTHAEZ, HITEF
Chairman and Chief Executive Executive Director
FASEFE130E MM FEBARMEHREA—E  The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these financial
e statements.

EEGR T N\FLANBZAELFTA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-TT)\F=ZA=1T—HILFEUABEIIR)
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—BEN\F —TTAF
2008 2007
L3 T T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ROUA-ANERAE Total equity at 1 April 333,832 289,141
ERERGRR Net income recognised directly
MFTSRE in equity:
BERENREAT Exchange differences on translation
RBRENELER of financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries 27(a) 1,410 284
BEER: Transfer from equity:
B E-ZHERT Release of exchange reserve upon
FSERBRE 5 A5 dissolution of a PRC subsidiary 27(a) 1,351 -
EEFEA Net profit for the year 27(a) 101,027 84,669
AARERRRES Total recognised income and
FECRANXARE expense for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the
Company 103,788 84,953
TFEEERAENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 10(b), 27(a) (30,758) (22,790)
FENEERK Dividends declared and paid
XATHIIRE during the year 10(a), 27(a) (24,246) (20,290)
(55,004) (43,080)
EXRGFEEN Movements in equity arising from
RS ! capital transactions:
RIZERAEE 2 Shares issued under share
BATRRR 7 option scheme 27(a) 2,489 2,196
BITER Issue expenses 27(a) 1) (15)
NS EEN RN Equity-settled share-based
BERAR S transactions 27(a) 1,047 637
Bl %N ) Repurchase of own shares
- BNHEE — par value 27(a) (1,720) -
- ENEBNELER — premium and brokage expenses paid  27(a) (14,458) -
(12,663) 2,818
WZA=+-AWM%ME  Total equity at 31 March 369,953 333,832

FASEFH1I0ANMEBAT B IMKRN 7D °

statements.

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these financial
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HMERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(2T )\ F=A=1+—BItFEUABEIIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—BENE “ETLF
2008 2007
Firsx Fr Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
e Operating activities
ERBATE A Profit before taxation 119,808 92,989
#ABIER : Adjustments for:
- EEEENE — Depreciation of fixed assets 45,823 43,493
- ATBERERLFR — Net impairment losses on fixed assets 1,968 7,047
— BEPB—FMBARE - Release of exchange reserve upon
IR (AR dissolution of a PRC subsidiary 1,351 -
— AR A BEF ARG — Change in fair value of financial
SREENARBEED assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,094 2,295
- FS B - Interest expenses 267 534
— FIBMA ~ Interest income (6,992) (4,997)
— BEEREMBERAN ~ Write back of loans from minority
PERR 2 EN shareholders of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries (8,711) -
- HEETEEBETEE ~ Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 2,524 236
- REDEHERR — Valuation gains on investment properties (6,052) (1,489)
— R EE ARG A - Equity-settled share-based
Eftms payment expenses 1,047 637
EELSHPALE RN Operating profit before changes
in working capital 152,127 140,745
FEEM Increase in inventories (10,391) (6,838)
ERHESREEM Increase in rental deposits paid (5,077) (6,760)
FEURER SR EL{th FE IO Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
mD/ () receivables 38 (1,912)
FERBR A A AT UL N Increase in trade and other payables 26,510 59,089
BlfSEe (F2) /8 (Decreaselincrease in rental
deposits received (862) 13
RERBSEREM Increase in provision for long
i service payments 1,568 256
BERAERRS Decrease in provision for
reinstatement costs (557) (158)
RELBEEHES Cash generated from operations 163,356 184,435
EIFS Interest received 6,982 5,084
ERFIE Interest paid (282) (534)
BERHE Tax paid
- BRNEBTIGH — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (17,827) (585)
- REEBNIGH ~ Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 190 31
- ENFERE ~ PRC tax paid (48) (749)
R EBREMH Net cash generated from operating
BeBELHE activities carried forward 152,371 187,682
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mERTRER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-FF/\F=A=+-

B IEFECABEIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“EENE S 3
2008 2007
FirsE Fr Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RAKEERREH Net cash generated from operating
BEFE activities brought forward 152,371 187,682
REEH Investing activities
BABBIERITER Placement of structured bank deposits - (54,390)
RBBULRTETEEN Maturity of structured bank deposits 58,960 23,356
BABRTEENR Payment for purchase of fixed assets (77,579) (70,709)
HERTEEMETEFE Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 23 508
RETBRANRESTE Net cash used in investing activities (18,596) (101,235)
MEED Financing activities
REERE BB TRG Proceeds from shares issued
fiKcE e under share option scheme 2,489 2,196
BITRGAIEENS T Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of shares (21) (15)
EIE R Payment for repurchase of shares (16,178) -
ERRE Dividends paid (55,004) (43,080)
BEFTER Repayment of bank loans (3,000) (19,250)
FERTEREIE Proceeds from new bank loans - 15,000
BMETBMANESFE Net cash used in financing activities (71,714) (45,149)
BeNBSSEYENFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 62,061 41,298
REA—AMNREESHRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 115,197 74,056
SEEXSENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 794 (157)
R=ZA=+—-HHRELMN Cash and cash equivalents at
REEEY 31 March 19 178,052 115,197

D

o

45F F 130 MM T B A SRR — 20

statements.

The notes on pages 45 to 130 form part of these financial

RIRTEEBERRE
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B IR R M &E
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 EEFHEE 1 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) & RER (a) Statement of compliance
KRB MERIRBEL G AGEM These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
HIFTA E AR E B G HmEER)D (1 with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
ScHEesmaEA E’J1I/DJ|J<<§ SRR (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
HEAD) (BB ERINZE) - individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
B ﬂ.:ﬂ@d‘ﬁ?'ﬁﬂ%%( AHEDIHEY Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued
BEATHRY - NP BRERFRKTEE by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
REKEEBEXSBMRAR([EA (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Fr)Esm EMRANDBEERE - L TE Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
AEEXKANEZESHBRME - Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply

with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

BRI AGEM T A THIMLE The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
2] E’J((E?éﬂﬂ%#&%ﬁg,ﬁw BRI HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for
REBMARREA N T HEMBE the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
W AT EIRATERA - HEAEEFHEDN Note 2 provides information on any changes in accounting
& [E N Y95 FE 5 LT R M IE RT Y 2E policies resulting from initial application of these developments
BIFFSIBE BRI LAE &5t B A & 51X to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
REF  ERAUBHRERARY - 5 and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
BRI MEE2 - statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FESBEE)
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FER - AREEE - BF  WAMZH
B ¥R BER R BB I E - [AETAR
& o BEEAFT AR RRERBEAEE
BNEEERNERERBEARBSAENS
REMARMELN  HERBREE
EEAERINAMEETRNEERR
ERREEERMELAEOER - &
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EEEERAFRHNSAMGMERER
R MREAAANETRARRER —
Hif - AR EEeEZ YR AER
RZBETHENNRRBMEER
2 BTEVEH & RT #YHA R A0 R 2k HA e 1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated as their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

— financial instruments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (see note 1(e)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

4
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)
Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FESBEE)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
note 1(m).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(j)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

4
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e) Structured bank deposits
The Group’s other financial assets represent structured bank
deposits which are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or loans and receivables. Purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

(i) Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Structured bank deposits in this category include bank
depositswithembedded derivatives that significantly modify
the cash flows resulting from these financial instruments.
These structured bank deposits are designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception and are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables
Structured bank deposits in this category include bank
deposits which are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note

10)-

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(r)ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1())):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease; and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings -
situated thereon
Leasehold improvements -

30 - 50 years

the remaining term

of the tenancy leases
the remaining term

of the tenancy leases
10% — 20% per annum

Air-conditioning plant -

Furniture and equipment -

Motor vehicles - 15% per annum
Computer system - 25% per annum
Others - 10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery and
utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent replacements
are charged to profit or loss in the year when the expenditure
is incurred.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Company are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(f)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of other assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets
carried at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment of trade and other
receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset'’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses (Continued)

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighed average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(qg)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost except where the payables are interest-
free loans from related parties without any fixed repayments
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

59



B 5 ¥R R B

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FREABERE)

(o) BEREFI(#E)

(i) AR B a5

BT REEMNBRERL 2 BERER
RETRA > MEDZTHEANHR
NEREIEm AREBEERERT
BAZHAHERIGE YEE
JB 2 BB BB R T IRBR R F - 2R
RBEATARBIRTT EEIEITE
FHEBRENEN  £ZE2ER
EBORIREIER  HARTER
BOAABEAEFSERERE
HARIA 7 8 o

ARREEREREARMHELRER
EOERERE - ERNNEFERE
RORFAAAEENEMNHARES
EMEFTARE  BMRFEKD
BTERANARRREENGRT
BeHERAREELAROBE -
ERRSEANSHESERBRE
MR ARRFTIFBRERENE
REE (RIS ENREEELERED
HE) EREEEATE EBARRT]
B mERRE N RB GRS &%
ERBE -  BESBEEEANHET
R EEBREETE(EARD
HER) EBED H(EERE AR
Tl )R RILE -

1

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(o) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

61



B RS R AR B RE

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FESBEE)

FRSH(4)

BT RLEBROPISMERI - FIBIET
MEAEBEMEERBEE(ERNEA
BETS AT A 2R IE H0 R 2K A] BEBUAS AU FE AR
HMEE D ) T AR - IR H
AREREERMELENREENRIEER
ERARKERMNBEEERNE DA fFE
MENMERMEEZEMELNEE  BE
L 8 o] ) 2= 2R 4 B B [R) — T A A R AN ]
—ERERER  URBERENER
1422 RIBFHE I Y B 8 @ SR RE TR
TR E P Sl RO AT 0 B 1B AT A1 1& HA K
A Al R A B eV AR HAR A B B - EHETE
BRIFENREHREREEERETRIUAX
R HE T8 AR AR B AR O AT R AR TR B 1R A
TR OR S P EE A YR ST B TR B 2 s JE AR
ARE—£R - IZEREERRERF—
PG HKEME - B ERER WA
FERESDE A I N B TR S 1R AN AR OB 2
M REE o

BRETUERSBREHREEREREN
ERMEEZRREATERNFIIMER :
NRAIEBRF T HESIRNEE : T
FEETAERANENEEXREN
iarER (B e R A G — B0 RIER
A1) 5 A R OB B A RV R (408 FE A
ZR2 - QRS E AT LAFE I8 0 by
fE > i BAER AR KR AR EEE
MEREZR: BAENER - 8
RERRATBEERRERINER)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

63



B 5 ¥ R B

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 EEEEREE)
(o) P1SHL(4E)

BEHBREEREE  GEEEM
BEVARR-HEHERIATH
IR TSR AR -

- R—EHRERE =X

— TRMERER - ELBER:T
EERREBEBRAEABRRLT
MEREREEEIABRRT
MIBEER AR B EERA -
RERREREREHNREER
ENBEEEHHARE  HF
RERZEEMBEZAE -

() DIEHMEER  EHENIBEE

(i)

EEHBIER
MBRERANFTEMBLREETA
(BIHER A ) SIS HEEBIR - PAFHIE
ZEROZBEATHBEALD BX—
B E B ARRES TARGRRD
REEMBIHERmMELNER -

RN B s AR R E L I 7
- ERODABEBRIELAEBE
BEHE] SR LA - BRIARHER)
FE & A5F P 70 A0 L At B AF 35K PP )4 T
RAET Wz - SLELERTE W
KWL EMS - HESEEA
SEERANZBEEENBRRER -
WMRRAC W W EIE - BIAE
P& 1 ()3 2E W 28 1) 4 FERR B &
A -

1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(9) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i)  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or Company issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(9) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

() Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate new lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(ii)) Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it

accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") or
foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of PRC or foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a PRC operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the PRC or foreign operation.

On disposal of a PRC or foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity
which relate to that operation is included in the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly and indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iif)

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that

is related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services with a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidated process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between Group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other
external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans and corporate and financing
expenses.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. The following sets out information on the
significant changes in accounting policies for the current and
prior accounting periods reflect in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 33).
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(a

Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosure

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those instruments, compared with the information
previously required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are
provided throughout these financial statements, in particular
in note 28.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital
and the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital. These new disclosures are set out in note
27(e).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

HKAS 33, Earnings per share

In order to comply with the amendment to HKAS 33, the Group
has changed its accounting policy relating to the calculation of
diluted earnings per share. Under the new policy, the fair value
of any goods or services to be supplied to the Group in the
future under the share option arrangement shall be included
in the exercise price of the share options when calculating the
diluted earnings per share. This change in accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively with comparatives restated as
shown in note 11(b).

7

RREEEERDE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



3

BXRE
AEBNEBEXHREE
MERRE -

EERHEERETEERM®
EBEMESKA - EXBOQFTOT

3 Turnover

RAE S E B The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.
RRmatHeE Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold

to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as

follows:
—EEN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
T T
$’000 $'000
BEmEARmiEE Sale of food and beverages 1,422,308 1,188,824
LE kA Property rental 13,685 16,039
1,435,993 1,204,863
Hthdr A B B3B8 4 Other Revenue and Net Income
—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
5 i
$'000 $'000
B A Other revenue
FBUA Interest income 6,992 4,997
BEE2EME AR Write back of loans from minority
RDBRRZER shareholders of non-wholly owned
ARIER (MEE22) subsidiaries (note 22) 8,711 -
15,703 4,997
BfrisF8 Other net income
REETEERETE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (2,524) (236)
BHHE—RHE AR Release of exchange reserve upon
I BRBREE 5 R dissolution of a PRC subsidiary (1,351) -
HE RIS mET Profit on sale of redemption gifts 1,026 1,909
REXEKERE Management fee from canteen operation 658 1,125
BERRBEESR Electric and gas range incentives 1,661 961
Hith Others 1,785 1,486
1,255 5,245
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5 FRIRATEF

BBADENE R, (FTA):

5 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—EENE e 3
2008 2007
T T
$'000 $'000
(@  BEMA: (@) Finance costs:
UanBE:ABR Change in fair value of financial
HEmEEN assets at fair value
RABEEY through profit or loss 1,094 2,295
ARTFAZHEERN Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
RITERRBLFE wholly repayable within five years 267 534
1,361 2,829
b)) BIMA: (b) Staff costs:
REMFRIK Contributions to defined
BESS contribution retirement plan 15,404 13,127
R EE R AR Equity-settled share-based 1,047 637
RERNS T payment expenses
e TEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 392,414 319,075
408,865 332,839
(©  HfER - () Other items:
FERA () Cost of inventories (note) 413,493 323,042
EEBENE Depreciation of fixed assets 45,823 43,493
MM (F:ikRS) Auditor's remuneration - audit services 2,750 2,409
MERNLEHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—REAEMNZE — Minimum lease payments 183,328 156,101
LTk ~ Contingent rentals 19,238 13,413
Jidiika Rental receivable
- REMEREET T — Investment properties, less direct
287,000 outgoings of $287,000 (3,699) (3,511)
(Z22+F- (2007: $270,000)
270,0007T)
~HiBLcehE - Other operating sub-leases (9,699) (12,258)
HEFHMNREAR Cost of subsequent replacement
HMHER of cutlery and utensils 7,699 7,574

Note: This represents food costs.
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6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

—EEZN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
T Fr
$'000 $'000
FHBE - RFER Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REFELRE Provision for the year 17,030 4,395
NEFEEENE Under-provision in respect of prior years 139 75
17,169 4,470
AEHIE - Current tax - PRC
REFER Provision for the year 155 982
A FEHBEER Over-provision in respect of prior years (55) -
100 982
EEBE Deferred tax
URNEENESE Origination and reversal of
ez temporary differences 1,486 2,868
HEEHHTE Effect of change in tax rate 26 -
1,512 2,868
18,781 8,320
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6 IFEARSRFMTHMRERE) 6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement
(Continued)
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

(a) HEBARMTORIEAR (&)
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MR A&25,0007T ° R4 ££50,000
TEAAZZSTENFENGAEEZR
KA °

(Continued)

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is
calculated at 17.5% (2007:17.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. PRC taxation represents PRC
foreign enterprises income tax for the year and is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant tax jurisdictions in the PRC.

On 27 February 2008, the Financial Secretary of the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
announced the 2008-09 Budget which proposes the
corporation profits tax rate will be lowered from 17.5%
to 16.5% with effect from the year assessment 2008-09
and a one-off reduction of 75% of the final tax for the
year of assessment 2007-08 subject to a ceiling of $25,000
for each company. A total refund of $50,000 has been
credited to the consolidated income statement in 2008.
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6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(Continued)

applicable tax rates:

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

“2ENE —TTLF
2008 2007
T T
$'000 $'000
FREAE A Profit before taxation 119,808 92,989
RRIEREREAE Notional tax on profit before
BEEEEEHENN taxation, calculated at the rate
ERAREER applicable to profits in the tax
PR R N B &R jurisdictions concerned 21,134 15,845
THMEY HATREY 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,446 3,216
WA ARNR BT E Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,867) (2,394)
AEENA LEEAER Tax effect of previously unrecognised
oRIE: i) p=lop Atz tax losses utilised this year = (8,916)
AEEARBEROKINER Tax effect of current year's tax losses
HRERE not recognised 563 242
AERNEMERER Tax effect of other temporary
HBER 2 differences not recognised 213 83
MEZBNTE Fffect of change in tax rate 26 -
AREIEBNGEH Hong Kong Profits Tax refundable (50) -
NEFEEENE Under-provision in prior years 84 75
Hith Others 232 169
ERFIES N Actual tax expense 18,781 8,320
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7 EFie

7 Directors’ Remuneration

RIFFBCRBHEDIDE 16157 R E

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

=M - the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e Rl UR 5 A Bt —BENF
EEHE AEMNE MERA  E#Hx #H L
Salaries
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2008
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Fi=E)
(note)
HiTEE Executive Directors
BRALE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 3,649 3,700 - 12 7,481
REBILE Mr Ng Chi Keung 130 1,073 600 74 12 1,889
BRER EAE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,059 600 74 12 1,865
BUHHTEE Independent Non-
executive Directors
AEERAE Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai 160 - - - - 160
BREEF R Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
FHS%AE Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam 140 - - - - 140
ZIEEE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
960 5,781 4,900 148 36 11,825
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7 EEMeE) 7 Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)
e 2E ARRER A BREE ZTTLE
ESHE AEDTR e ERaS (57N e
Salaries
allowances Retirement
Directors'’  and benefits ~ Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2007
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions Total
Tr Tr T Tr T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(PisE)
(note)
HITEE Executive Directors
BRALE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 3,543 2,900 - 12 6,575
RERTE Mr Ng Chi Keung 130 1,046 500 10 12 1,698
REKEE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,097 500 10 12 1,739
BUHHTEE Independent Non-
executive Directors
EELE Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai 150 - - - - 150
BREEFLSE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
FHEEAE Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam 140 - - - - 140
fImERL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
950 5,686 3,900 20 36 10,592
MEE: AR AEROZHEERERAR Note:  Share-based payments represent the estimated value of

AR ER R TEEBREN
hErHEE - ELBERENEERR
SR B 521 (o) (i) FT 81 51) AN 5= B DA B £
REMNTH RSN G EREF
B UREZEBEK - B2HRE
REMERBORMA R T RETA
B 8 [0 72 LA 1 F 2 R TR BRI
HREE

EHEELEYMRENFEE - BEM
BRYBRENEZIERMNEKE @ &
REEGRE P ERETE]—E
M FE24 77 ©

share options granted to the Directors under the Company’s
share option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(o)(ii)
and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of
equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option schemes” in the Directors’
report and note 24.
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8 BREM&AL
ERMERENALSR  Sf(=F
TLE: =f)REE AEOMSH
EHN T « RBMO(ZTTEF

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2007: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

RIAL) A TR BN E 25BN T ¢ other two (2007: two) individuals are as follows:
—SENF —TTLF
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$000 $'000
e RAEMME Salaries and other emoluments 2,037 2,047
LARR (7 BETR Y Share-based payments 112 405
RRET IR Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
2,173 2,476

MM RS A TS EA T HE
A

The emoluments of the two individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

—EEN\F TEEAF

2008 2007

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A A

ZFJ0%1,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 1 -
1,000,0017c%1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1 2
2 2

9 FAFHEREMGEF

AARIEZBRRELGE BN BE—
FEIARRBFEFREKA 930,0007T
—EEA4F ¢ 1,384,0007T) EiE o

9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of $930,000 (2007: $1,384,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

RREEEERDEF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9 FAFHIBREMEEF(Z) 9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company (Continued)
RAR) EMAFE & S EEE AR Reconciliation of the above amount of the Company’s profit
for the year:

—ZEENE —TTLF
2008 2007
T Tt
$'000 $'000
FFARR R B Amount of consolidated profit attributable to
R 2 AR R equity shareholders dealt with in the
%Tﬁ?%émﬂﬁ%ﬁ Company’s financial statements (930) (1,384)
BEFEHEA Write back of impairment losses on
ezt EI’J/)EHETEEE interest in subsidiaries 99,490 92,307
RATREE Company’s profit
M (B EE27(b)) for the year (note 27(b)) 98,560 90,923
10 B& 2 10 Dividends

(a) BRAXFERNARGERIREAME  (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
EEIR &I T Interim dividend declared and paid
IR S &A% 19.01L of 19.0 cents (2007: 16.0 cents)
(=TT : 16.01L) per share 24,246 20,290
REBEBREZEDIK Final dividend proposed after
NEARR B &A% 29.01L the balance sheet date of 29.0 cents
(ZZTZTE45F : 24.01L) (2007: 24.0 cents) per share 36,861 30,780
REZEREBERZEDIK Special dividend proposed after
Rl S &R%12.01 the balance sheet date of 12.0 cents
(ZEZLF  |\) (2007: nil) per share 15,253 -
76,360 51,070
REZRERZD R REARE K55 The final dividend and special dividend proposed after the
REMAEEEBRREAE - balance sheet date has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.
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10 BB (&)

(b) BN E—WERFE - IRANFEZREN

AT AN AR B s BRI AR

10 Dividends (Continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholder of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year

—EENE —ETAF
2008 2007
T Tt
$'000 $'000
B E—HRFE - Final dividend in respect of the
WA F A% AR previous financial year, approved
TR ERRR B and paid during the year,
FhZ24.010 of 24.0 cents (2007: 18.0 cents)
(ZZTZT 4 :18.01L) per share 30,758 22,790

wHE_ZTZTL+F=_A=+—H1t
FEZERIHHOREBREMS -
RZEELFEREPERDIRN
RERRR B B AR S AZOME R S A Y R
2B B IR22,000 TR E4E ¢ b=
HHRER(WEEEHERDBFEE
RFEMMEENRD RGDEEZ
IR BB FEMETHEE
AetE RIS RGOS ©

In respect of the final dividend approved and paid for
the year ended 31 March 2007, a difference of $22,000
between the final dividend proposed in the 2007 annual
report and amount approved and paid during the year
represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
before the closing date of the register of members and
(i) new shares issued upon the exercise of share options
before the closing date of the register of members.
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11 SEBREH

(a) BRELXEF
EREABFRIZBAFENARE T
i IR 7 75 AR R FE {5 0% £1)101,027,0007T
(ZZEZ 4 : 84,669,0007T) * LAKRD
1T LR AR A9 N RE 19 20127,844,000

11 Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$101,027,000 (2007: $84,669,000) and the weighted average
of 127,844,000 ordinary shares (2007: 126,656,000 shares) in

(= ZZT 4 126,656,0000% )5t & issue during the year, calculated as follows:
LU
TR hE a8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
—EENF —TTLF
2008 2007
R &R RingE
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR Fr%
‘000 ‘000
RUA—BHEEITERR Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 127,522 125,891
TEERENTE Effect of share options exercised 874 765
ORI E Effect of shares repurchased (552) -
R=A=+—HAHNE@ERKR Weighted average number of
IniEFHE ordinary shares at 31 March 127,844 126,656
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11 SRER(Z)
(b) BREEZRT

FREERNERBARR

BB I8 (#F)

LR
% 5 FEAE % F]101,027,0000( — 2 F
F : 84,669,000 ) * WA Mgt
hntEF588128,670,0000% (- TZ+4F
(E4R): 128,737,0000% )zt &I

11 Earnings Per Share (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
+ the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
[ERiegeo) Company of $101,027,000 (2007: $84,669,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 128,670,000
128,737,000 shares), calculated as

shares (2007 (restated):
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

82

—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
RHEE RIDEB
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR &
‘000 ‘000
(B®)
(restated)
R=A=+—HAmNE@ERKR Weighted average number
I 98 of ordinary shares at 31 March 127,844 126,656
WAR RIBIRE AR QT8 Effect of deemed issue
AR BT EHER of ordinary shares under
BTERROTE the Company’s share option
scheme for nil consideration 826 2,081
R=A=+—HHNE®E Weighted average number of
g8 (EE) ordinary shares at 31 March
(diluted) 128,670 128,737
KIREEEERAT
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12 PEE

DESE R RIEAEBEREFEFE DS
EHE2i - AREB I HEREAEE
MASBHEERTEEREA - HER
BREDBEENEBER -

e PNl
AEENEBRRBHEBOD

BERER: REREERMNERM -

12 Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
and geographical segments. Business segment information is
chosen as the primary reporting format because this is more
relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Restaurant operation:

The selling of food and beverages in
restaurants.

MEMRE : HEAMEUAEEHESKA - Property leasing: The leasing of premises to generate
rental income.
EEXH NERE AREEH RREE
Restaurant operation Property leasing Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
“EENE ZERLE CEENE ZERHE CEENE CETHE CEIE 0 CER+E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T T T T S
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
REHAEP Revenue from
B external
Customers 1,422,308 1,188,824 13,685 16,039 - - 1,435,993 1,204,863
REEMAME Inter-segment
gl N revenue - - 6,242 6,215 (6,242) (6.215) - -
&5 Total 1,422,308 1,188,824 19,927 22,254 (6,242) (6,215) 1,435,993 1,204,863
ABEERR Segment result 89,746 76,966 18,035 15,392 107,781 92,358
APEEENE Unallocated
k&R operating
income and
expenses 13,388 3,460
Uyl Profit from
operations 121,169 95,818
BERA Finance costs (1,361) (2,829)
FiEH Income tax (18,781) (8,320)
ERER Profit for the year 101,027 84,669
EENE Depreciation
for the year 45,041 4,111 782 782
B Impairment losses 3,678 7047 - -
AEEXER Reversal of
impairment
osses (1,710) - - -
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12 FWHE(E) 12 Segment Reporting (Continued)
¥ (&) Business segments (Continued)
£BEE NEAE PHEER RREE
Restaurant operation Property leasing Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
“EENE ZERtE ZEENE Bt CEENE CTTHF CEIN\E CEEtF
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T T T T T
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
HHEE Segment assets 536,302 418,915 61,622 76,768 (14,744) (20,088) 583,180 475,595
AOMEE Unallocated assets 42,097 102,183
EESE Total assets 625,277 577,778
HHEE Segment liabilties 244,709 220,882 15,254 21,190 (14,744) (20,088) 245,219 221,984
BEEH Interest-bearing
borrowings 3,350 6,350
APERE Unallocated
liabilities 6,755 15,612
BlEaE%E Total liabliies 255304 243946
EEREE Capital
MERR expenditure
incurred during
the year 7,921 81,527 - -

Hol@ 7

BRRARBEREERHNEEDS -

2 D #BE SR
BEFHMESTEEE - DEHEER
BARARAXAIAEENMAE BT EE

D EBWA R IA

Geographical segments
Hong Kong is a major market for all of the Group’s
businesses.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure
are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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12 FWPHE(E) 12 Segment Reporting (Continued)

Hol@ 7550 (&) Geographical segments (Continued)
H
i (TEERE)
The PRC (other than
Hong Kong Hong Kong)
—EENE “EELF —EEN\E “EELF

2008 2007 2008 2007

T Tz T Tt

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REMRER Revenue from external

B A customers 1,326,781 1,119,414 109,212 85,449
NEEE Segment assets 522,057 432,172 94,630 75,599
FENEE Capital expenditure
MERFX incurred during
the year 56,230 76,395 15,697 5,132
13 BEEE 13 Fixed Assets
(a) NE&EE (a) The Group
AELHA HENE
BEN URIE EfyEE NGt RENE g
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties Total
T T T r n T
§'000 §000 §000 §000 §/000 §'000
HAZfE Cost or valuation:
RZZEAENA—H At 1 April 2006 87,640 221,196 245,981 554,817 42 833 597,650
ERH% Exchange adjustments 26 4an 475 1,102 - 1,102
KE Additions - 30,724 50,803 81527 - 81,527
e Disposals - (14,105) (2,560) (16,665) - (16,665)
2 Transfer 5,000 - - 5,000 (5,000) -
BfR% Surplus on revaluation - - - - 1,489 1,489
RZEE+F=A=1-H At 31 March 2007 92,856 238,226 294,699 625,781 39322 665,103
ik Representing:
R Cost 92,856 238,226 294,699 625,781 - 625,781
BE-Z2%5+E Valuation - 2007 - - - - 39,322 39,322
92,856 238,226 294,699 625,781 39322 665,103
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13 BEREE)
(a) A&E (&)

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued)

BELHA BENE
) HRIR BfpEE It Renz ]
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties Total
i i 1 i it i
§/000 §/000 §/000 §/000 §1000 §1000
EHITERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment;
W% EMA-R At 1 Apri 2006 25359 177,094 149,963 352416 - 352416
B3 Exchange adjustments 8 318 259 661 - 661
EgE Charge for the year 2113 16,298 25022 13493 - 13493
HERDE Whitten back on disposal - (14,105) (1816) (15921) - (15921)
HEBR Impairment losses - 1738 5,309 7047 - 7047
e ey At 31 March 2007 27,616 181343 178,737 387,6% - 387,6%
BEAE: Net ook value:
NZEBtE=A=1-H At 31 March 2007 65,240 56,883 115,962 238,085 3932 277,407
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13 BEREE)
(a) A&E (&)

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued)

AgLHA AENE
BEY YRIE HitEE Nt RENE k]
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties Total
T T T SR T T
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
RAREfEE Cost or valuation:
RZZ2LEMA-A At 1 April 2007 92,85 238,226 294,699 625,781 39322 665,103
ERH% Exchange adjustments 541 1,601 2,08 4224 - 4204
%E Additions - 27198 447729 71,927 - 71,927
iH& Disposals - (15,203) (13,130) (28,333) - (28,333)
EfhEH Surplus on revaluation - - - - 6,052 6,052
RZFE\F=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718,973
ik Representing:
B Cost 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 - 673,599
EE-ZZENF Valuation - 2008 - - - - 45,374 45,374
93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718973
ZerERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment;
RZEELEMA-R At 1 April 2007 27,616 181,343 178,737 387,696 - 387,69
ERHE Exchange adjustments 238 1,076 1,006 2,320 - 2,320
EERE Charge for the year 2,80 243 21,120 45823 - 45,823
{H R Written back on disposal - (14,670) (11,116) (25,786) - (25,786)
WEER Impairment losses - 117 2,507 3678 - 3678
REEXER Reversal of
impairment losses - (308) (1,402) (1,710 - (1,710)
RZFEN\F=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 30,134 191,035 190,852 412,021 - 412,021
REFE Net book value:
R-FEN\E=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 63,263 60,787 137,528 261,578 45,374 306,952
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13
(a)

BEESE(E)
AERE(E)
REBYEKRARGEENDFNOT

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(a

The Group (Continued)
The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group
is as follows:

—EENE —ETAF
2008 2007
T Tt
$'000 $'000

HELHMMBEYIRMKZA) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
EEBNRHAEE Long-term leasehold in Hong Kong 66,409 66,409
EEBRIMPHEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 26,988 26,447
93,397 92,856

REWE(REE) Investment properties, at valuation

EEENPREEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 11,215 8,812
EEBEINFEHEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 34,159 30,510
45,374 39,322

REBMNKEMEENR ST NF=A
Z+—BERASWAFEL AYETIS
BEMSBLIERFTE AR MERNT
EELETEMN BFRGBESCHBLAZE
T —EEFEBRMABRARET  H
HHoETARABBAEMETEREE -
HAEEYENELMTBEEAS
HEENGHELSR AFENEHARK
6,052,0007C( —Z & & + 4 : 1,489,000
TL)EFTAGZEEBREERNA -

HitpBEEBREM  RE - SRHE "
B BREAGLRMABENIXEAR
2R °

(b) The investment properties of the Group were revalued as at

31 March 2008 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The revaluation surplus of $6,052,000 (2007:
$1,489,000) for the year has been credited to the consolidated
income statement.

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.
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13
(d)

BEESE(E)
EXRFER ASEEEEREST

DIEEEHERE THEELED/E
BEBEEMTWREHEE - BREGE -
FRNELETEENRASBECD RE
3,678,0007t( Z = &+ 4 : 7,047,000
L) AN AEEEEBEEFANERN
BB DB ENFEEGRENE
EEE Y e EgE I B R E B K
1,710,000/t (Z 2T +F: &) c £ R -
REERENETEEERNRBEERRFRE
£1,968,000C( ZFZE+4 : 7,047,000
JT) °

A E B T R AR IRBE IR R 10%
(ZZETEF 10%)MEENBEEE
EREE/ER -

NR-BENF=A=+—08 kAL
E =B AR FTERITEERENY
3 0R ¥ (E 459,818,000 T( —EE+
£ :58,511,0007T) °

AEBNUKLHERLREDE - 5L
HEVZ AR —F2=F - FELEHA
EWYTEERERE - AEERETA
ERCEHETHRBENNRERE
R EEBEIT -

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(d) During the year, the Group's management identified several

branches which were continuously underperformed and
estimated the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of
those branches. Based on these estimates, the carrying
amount of the fixed assets was written down by $3,678,000
(2007: $7,047,000) during the year. In addition, the Group's
management re-estimated the recoverable amounts of the fixed
assets of certain branches which had been impaired in prior
years and wrote back impairment losses of $1,710,000 (2007:
nil) during the year. As a result, the net impairment losses on
fixed assets amount to $1,968,000 (2007: $7,047,000) were
recognised for the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the fixed
assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate of 10%
(2007: 10%).

At 31 March 2008, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group amounted to $59,818,000 (2007: $58,511,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases initially run for one to three years. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

—EENE —FELE

2008 2007

T Tt

$'000 $'000

—FA Within 1 year 4,075 3,640
—FRERAFA After 1 year but within 5 years 3,500 3,375
7,575 7,015

RENRENEBRR  AEBEERSK
WHEEBSHEEME - R —E2HH
MR RRBEESR D - MBRHREBNR
I o ERTRRERBHRIETT °

(g) To cope with the long-term business growth, the Group is

actively searching for a new site in Hong Kong to set up a new
central food processing plant to replace the existing one in
operation. Total investment is expected in the region of $100
million.
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14 g

14 Goodwill
—EENF —EBETLF
2008 2007
T T
$'000 $'000
BRA - RMA—RA K Cost, at 1 April and 31 March
=A=+—8H 1,001 1,001

BERENESE L ETARERR

A BRI 0 B TR TS 5 305 B s 2
FARFOBSELETLT -

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the area of operation and
business segment as follows:

—sE\F  —TEE

2008 2007

5 Fi

$'000 $'000

BEEBK—4 Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001

ReEHETNA KO B2 RIEER
BEFE - AETERREEECZE
MAFHBREERRSREMT - BB
TEHENRESRER T AN EEHFIE
TEHEL - BEREATABEZASELE
TR E R RIFIGIERE -

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

EFEABEENETERK Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
—T\F —TFLF
2008 2007
VRS Gross margin 12% 12%
BRX Growth rate 5% 5%
PR Discount rate 10% 10%

ERERBTENE NS ERETR
BEMZE o FrERAH Nt F1918 KR8
TR MEPIETRR — B MATERA R4
3R 2% A R I R A B 0 AR 5 5 R\ B H) A5 A
PFEREK -

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant segments.
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16

BB AFIMES 15 Interest in Subsidiaries
PN/

The Company
—EENE “EELF
2008 2007
Fr Tt
$000 $'000
IE ETRRD (IRAA) Unlisted shares, at cost 76,053 74,996
= NGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 412,741 509,223
488,794 584,219
VAR AI=E=ES Less: impairment losses (139,049) (238,539)
349,745 345,680

(a) FEUIPHE A~ FFRIA R EEM - A
EEBAREEMES -

b) RZBENE=A=+—"HBHHB
NAFBEHINTEREFE128%E
130E °

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
repayable on demand and interest-free.

(b) Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2008 are set out on
pages 128 to 130 of the financial statements.

Htt&mEE 16 Other Financial Assets
SETYC RN £ S
2008 2007
Tt Tt
$'000 $'000
AR BE B Other financial assets at fair value
MEMSRIEE through profit or loss 19,952 34,947
LA SE A ARG = Other financial assets
MEMmemMEE at amortised cost 19,393 64,452
39,345 99,399
B BREEDRBEE] Less: amount included
HN A under “current assets” = (58,960)
39,345 40,439
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16 Hth&mEE(Z)

17

Hiv &R EERIET KM BHEENRA
BEEX IPBEERI A ZA
BB ITERBEFRORR - BN E
EEFYIRFWE - A2BAHHER
H(BREIRTRERE - INEER
NIRETIHRIT) ABEE SOF 8B X5
g .

HvSREERRET MIIARERBER
WREEB NI ER REMRFIR

16 Other Financial Assets (Continued)

Other financial assets represent principal protected structured
deposits placed with financial institutions which are subject
to call option at the discretion of the financial institutions
before the maturity dates. Interest is receivable on a quarterly
or annual basis and calculated at fixed or variable rates with
reference to market rate fluctuations, including LIBOR, foreign
currency exchange rate and equity market performance.

Included in other financial assets are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which it relates:

—BE\F C—TTLF

2008 2007

Tt Tt

$'000 $'000

ETT United States Dollars ZJTUSD 5,063 3£7TUSD 5,706

&8s 17 Inventories
(a) BEBEBERIITHNFERIE (a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
KEE
The Group
—EENE —TEF
2008 2007
T Tt
$000 $'000
B &R Food and beverages 23,138 13,904
EFEM - BEME Consumables, packing materials and
N E i 5EIE other sundry items 5,276 4,119
28,414 18,023
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17 & (&)
(b) RALENEEHESTOT

17 Inventories (Continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

—EENE —TTF
2008 2007
T Tt
$000 $'000
EEFENRESH Carrying amount of inventories sold 412,743 322,675
FEMR Write down of inventories 750 367
413,493 323,042
18 T M AR % 0 3L fth B L 2% 18 Trade and Other Receivables
rEE b
The Group The Company
—EENE “ZEtF —EENE “ETRtF
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
FEURBR A Trade and other

HA R debtors 5,719 8,454 - -
Bfffieke Rental deposits paid 15,511 7,798 = -
REMBRZ Deposits and prepayments 20,703 17,996 201 184

FEUH B A 7] Amounts due from
HIE subsidiaries ~ - 88,149 61,344
41,933 34,248 88,350 61,528
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18 FEMRRSR K LB SR (&)

(a)

ARER DT

RAEE B R R USRS E AR B YR B 1
MR (DR RARER) - RIRER
BHF EOREDMAT -

18 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(a

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice date, with
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

AEE
The Group

—EENF ZETLF

2008 2007

F T

$'000 $'000

—Z=+H 1 to 30 days 2,817 5,425
=+—ZA+H 31 to 90 days 117 327
h+—Z—8N+H 91 to 180 days 9 15
2,943 5,767

AREBEBATETNHEXSETRIAR
TREE - ARETGE TRREBHID
BENF=tHEEATBENEEH-

& L BR FURL(E

FEWBR A RVEIB R S A EBIR KRR
8 - EAREEEHINE BTN 8
MIRER - BEREBKESEETHE
FEWEER(RHEE1G)) - REBZZZEE
NER T+ F=ZA=+—HIL&F
B AEBWERSHEBELERINE
KRBEEK -

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 90 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivable directly (see note
1(i)). During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007, the
Group did not record any material impairment losses in respect
of trade related receivables.
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18 BUIRRME MM (Z)

(c) JEREREUER

FEME R SR AR A HAR A R B A FE UK BR BRBR
BROMTIT -

18
(0

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Trade receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivable that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

AEE

The Group
—EENFE —ETHEF
2008 2007
5 Fit
$'000 $'000
JE@HAth IERE Neither past due nor impaired 2,638 5,064
BER LR —1EA Less than 1 month past due 179 477
s —=={EA 1 to 3 months past due 117 217
BE=E N EA 3 to 6 months past due 9 9
305 703
2,943 5,767

e 3 0 3L BB KRR BT 42
BHRREBHEREP -

B8 3B SRR (B O B I BR KRR T SOk B2
AEBEREEBERN —RBIULE
F-EBEBRE  RENERLR AR
EEERVERE  MARERIDKR
AR E2EUE - FTABASL L ET R E
o AEBEUERELERMIEFHR
Han e

(d) RRBFTA YK B A B RIR S HE K

;- AEREBAREENRES -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

All amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.
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19 ReMBALEEY

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

bS] PN
The Group The Company

—EENE ZETHE —EENE “ETLF

2008 2007 2008 2007

Fx Tz Fx Tz

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RITER Deposits with banks 124,018 85,308 - -

BOEHRRRAE Cash at bank and in hand 54,034 29,889 112 9%

BEABERATM Cash and cash

Bem equivalents in the

ReEEY balance sheet 178,052 115,197 112 9%

BERBRMTANESNESEEDE
ETINEREEREEE NG
REMHEER

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

TEHE
The Group
—BENF C—FELF
2008 2007
Fr T
$'000 $'000

ETT United States Dollars

ZEJTUSD 1,141 ZEJTUSD 524
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20 Trade and Other Payables

iS4 VN
The Group The Company

—2ENE e 3 —ZENE “TTLE

2008 2007 2008 2007

Tr T Tr T

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

[RGiEER 0 Rental deposits received 2,050 1,289 - -
FETERFRA Creditors and accrued

BB expenses 217,708 198,618 1,391 1,491

ENIBRRE Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,875
219,758 199,907 29,266 29,366

PREEE B BR R E A e ZR B A
JERMBRR  HIRBZ At ENERED
Mo :

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
the balance sheet date:

AEE

The Group
—EENFE —ETHHF
2008 2007
T Tt
$'000 $'000
—Z=+H 1 to 30 days 63,897 61,002
—t—EATH 31 to 90 days 3,380 3,208
h+—Z—8N+H 91 to 180 days 406 2,202
—BNA+—E=/F/THAH 181 to 365 days 79 71
—FUE Over one year 568 490
68,330 66,973

AR B FT A FEAT P B A B R IR S R K
B WEAGRRERBNRER -

All amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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21 REHFRITRR

R-ZZEENF=A=+—0 " RITEX
FEFHT

21 Secured Bank Loans

At 31 March 2008, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

AEE

The Group
T
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 3,000 3,000
—FIREMFA After 1 year but within 2 years 350 3,000
MEREBRFA After 2 years but within 5 years - 350
350 3,350
RITEFARTE Total bank loans 3,350 6,350

RZZEZENF=A=+—8 " Liifra
IRITERMBITBE I UREERN LS
Y ZEAVE BIR (2BM5E136e)) °

REENBYRITERBFAEERET
BRSO EERBRILETNROEK 77
BIFE - WEROE LN BHER]
MEERLHEF o HAREERRY
EBANMERBZERER - AKH
EHERERETRERY -

AEEERRBE SRR BN
F28@)i) e RZZEENEF=ZA=+—
A #MEEREHCHHAEERENRZ
HZEZLF &\)-

At 31 March 2008, all the above bank loans and bank overdrafts
were secured by charges on certain properties of the Group
(note 13(e)).

Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance
sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in 28(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2008, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2007:
None).
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23

Ht | &
RZZET+FE=A=+—H FEEH
h =2 EMNBRR([ZIEEEWNE
REDARHEMNS B D BBERNEK
(TZER]D  ZEREHAEE LD
BUBCRIZ S BRI - AARZ
HEEMBARRMRLEEESD - REXK
BEEA RS REEEERY - %I
2EMBARFR-NANFEELE
& o BN NEERBR - R EHE
REEFMEERZZENF AT
BB R MeR T~ — RIS B R
EITHE - RRERNEREEMS -
ARRBREEAINER L ERZER
{E R HER -

e BRRE - ZERD EEAKEE
E-TT/\F=A=+-ENEELRSE

&R RkTEF
REEZBEBAFMEAESFTEK
BIYRREE - BRBEFBEBEHHR
EFEANEES - RUAHMUERTESE
El([aEesTaEll) - RESFHEE—E
AEEFERTE > ABUNZAEAE
2o RIERESE  BEMNEERAE
ZREBSHBABRNS% [AaHEI1E T #
B AMEREAE LR A20,000
T o ARG R ARIE S EIF -

AREBEHEFBEAIMNOEEROEESXZ
BHEA L HHRE o

22

23

Other Loans

The loans as at 31 March 2007 were due by three of the
Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiaries (“non-wholly owned
subsidiaries”) to their respective minority shareholders (“the
loans”). The loans were made by the Group and the minority
shareholders to finance the non-wholly owned subsidiaries’
operations in proportion of their respective shareholdings. The
loans were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment
terms. The non-wholly owned subsidiaries had ceased their
operations in 1999. In view of their inactive status, two of the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries have been dissolved on 20 June
2008 with the remaining one to be dissolved in due course.
Insofar as the liability for repayment of the loans is concerned,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has given any
guarantee in respect of the loans.

Having considered all the above factors, the loans have been
written back to the consolidated income statement of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2008.

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local arrangements.
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LESEENUERGRERNES
ARBR—FZ_FNATN\BRAT

—Iﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁiﬂ Bt ARRIES
ZE&%E’JI EERERCIRN/NCIE N s

TE’J%%(@%?E% TEERBIIF
WTER)ERREREMER - K

BA KK &H@A RUSRBHE
o EE AN BEBRERNA %%

HEIERE  URBAQTKRND -
BRTFER T =ZBHRN RS EEE ()
BROEE: (INEREXRTAHERR
B FT g B IRERFTERARMD U TE

(i B ERER T2 BRI R {E
LEBAEBZITEHRERTHROKS
FHRHE BRESFEETILNE B
BREZLPATE - BREET 81 &S
BB AR TTERIFT AR A MR EHAR -
BEANBREGEBRERBIRAA
A1 EEK -

/\

L‘AT%EKEF&?%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬂ’ﬂbﬁkﬂﬂ%
1¢ FTEBREREEELE XD E

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2002 under which the Directors are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant,
agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or services,
customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
price which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the share; (i) the closing price of the share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer. Save
as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before an option can be exercised under
the share option scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
years are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares:

BREHE TR BRES AR
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
RTEFENBRE
Options granted to Directors:
AR-ZZEZENF-—H—HE
—TEN\F+A=+—H
——TT=F-A+H HE D4 17E 5.94F
—on 7 February 2003 250,000 Exercisable in four batches 5.9 years
during the period from
1 January 2004
to 31 December 2008
—IEA_‘??E/\$+:H —H=z
—Z-NOF+—A=1H
-~ T+ F+-HA=H B2 511712 75
—on 3 December 2007 800,000 Exercisable in five batches 7 years

during the period from
1 December 2008
to 30 November 2014
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24 LESRANDLURBRGESERBOESH 24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (Continued)

(a)

(%)
NTRESFERTERENGERAE (@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
- MEBRESEAEERIMKRMN years are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
g (&) delivery of shares (continued):
BREZE TEERR BRESHNHR
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
BT R ERERE -

Options granted to employees:

AR-_ZEZENF—-—A—HZE
T N\F+=A=+—H
—ZZTT=F=-AtH HE 24D TT1E 5.94
—on 7 February 2003 164,500 Exercisable in four batches 5.9 years
during the period from
1 January 2004
to 31 December 2008

ARZZEZERF—HA—HZE
T N\F+=A=+—H
——ZTTmENA=R HIR 5 3001718 4.4
—on 2 August 2004 700,000 Exercisable in three batches 4.4 years
during the period from
1 January 2006
to 31 December 2008

ARZZETRFAAZT=EZE
—ETAFAA TR
——TEWFNA—H HE 24D TT1E 4.65F
—on 1 September 2004 400,000 Exercisable in four batches 4.6 year
during the period from
23 September 2005
to 22 September 2009

TR-EEAFAATHAE

—ZT-=FXAt+=H
——ZTERFWA-+AHA HE D5 171E 6.65F
—on 25 April 2005 480,000 Exercisable in five batches 6.6 years

during the period from
14 June 2006 to 13 June 2013

AR_ZEZEN\F+-_A—HZE
“Z-mOF+—A=+H
——ZET+F+-RA=H B2 51712 745
—on 3 December 2007 3,390,000 Exercisable in five batches 7 years
during the period from
1 December 2008
to 30 November 2014
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2 LESEENLERMSERNHTS

(&)

(b) BEAEREIE MNEFIHITEEWNT

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

—EEN\F —ETF
2008 2007
hnREF 139 fEREE piRETrH fEAR
TEE #A 1B A
Weighted Weighted
average  Number  average  Number
exercise of exercise of
price options price options
FYARITE Outstanding at the
beginning of the year $2.24 1,994,500 $1.84 3,637,500
FANBERT Granted during the year $9.97 4,190,000 N/A -
FRDITE Exercised during the year $1.91 (1,303,500) $1.35 (1,630,500)
FABRK Lapsed during the year $9.07  (100,000) $1.00  (12,500)
FRRITEE Outstanding at the end
of the year $8.96 4,781,000 $2.24 1,994,500
FEARAITEE Exercisable at the end
of the year $2.10 121,000 $1.59 914,500

NEFRNBITEBRERITEE B & hisE
T RE A10.65T( 2B+ F -
8.117T) ©

R-ZEENF=A=+—BRTEER
R ITEE A17T ~ 2.3255C  3.57T M
997 (=ZFF 4 : 17t~ 2.0757% *
23257t %3.550) © M plEFE FHRE
HEIR B NMF(ZZTEZT L F:251
F)o

BREN AR EBEMRR
BRRTERERERERGN AR BER
DEMBETRBERENAABERE - 7
BTBRENGFTAALBESKE R
AFEELAE  WHBRENS OB
RAEZRENEAZE - —TAAFE
BRI ENEHRRITENTE

The weighted average closing share price at the date of exercise
for shares options exercised during the year was $10.65 (2007:
$8.11).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had exercise price of
$1, $2.325, $3.5 and $9.97 (2007: $1, $2.075, $2.325 and $3.5)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.11 years
(2007: 2.51 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial lattice model.
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2 LESEENLERMSERNHT S

(c)

24 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (Continued)

(&)

BREMNALEENRRE) (c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued)
BRENQIABENRE —EENFE
Fair value of share options and assumptions 2008
Rt BN AR EE

Fair value at measurement date $1.48
A& B

Share price $9.97
1IE(E

Exercise price $9.97

SEEENEY RS
Expected volatility

26.39% -43.10%

BRESR (BEM AR EEIE TR A IR )

Option life (expressed as weighted average life used in the

modelling under binomial lattice model)

TEEAAR B K
Expected dividend yield

ERERANE (INEESRIEREMN)

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes)

IR B R KIBE L RE R (AB K
RO GRIRBERTHE)
I B g% IR A A FE 1S H) B R TR B R 2R
KBERNEMERE I EHARRE
o BHIR B KR RBELBREFH -
TEHHARRNES A ERETEMMG
AR AR(EE -

BREERE - BERGEEET - 58
FrERERBERTENAABERY
EET MR - BEENE T AR
BRI TS IR IFRR B

3.47 years

4.31%

1.16% - 2.94%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividend yield is based on historical dividends. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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25 BRERREMTHMRER
(a) BERBBERMRHNABAERA

25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet
(@) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:

b1 | PO\
The Group The Company
BN ZTTLF —EINE “ETLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TEE Provision for
BE Hong Kong
FISH & Profits Tax for the year 17,030 4,395 - -
ERES Provisional Profits
MEH Tax paid (13,161) (234) - -
3,869 4,161 - -
NAEE Balance of Profits Tax
MEH provision relating
Kl to prior years (294) (118) = (110)
3,575 4,043 - (110)
G PRC taxation 743 636 - -
B’ Amount of taxation
=R expected to be
i settled within
MBI one year 4318 4,679 - (110)
& Representing:
REEkRN Current tax recoverable (294) (118) - (110)
JERTAERE Current tax payable 4,612 4,797 - -
4,318 4,679 - (110)
1 04 RIWEEBBRLDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



25 BRERREMTHMBRGE)
(b) EHERELEMEHEEMBIE
BEREAAEERARKERNELEN
(BE)/ BENERIDMAFEES

25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the

LU year are as follows:
rEE
The Group
BB
HESBE
MirE,/
RENEEM AR HEE mE
Depreciation
in excess of
related
Revaluation depreciation
of investment  allowances/
properties tax losses Total
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
RETHRIE Deferred tax arising from:
FERERIA
RZETRFEMA—H At 1 April 2006 105 (3,431) (3,326)
ferreBaR Debited to the consolidated
kR income statement - 2,868 2,868
RZZEZ+E=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 105 (563) (458)
RZZT+LFMNA—H At 1 April 2007 105 (563) (458)
fereBaR Debited to the consolidated
13 Income statement 48 1,464 1,512
RZZEZEN\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 153 901 1,054
rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETTLF
2008 2007
T T
$'000 $'000
TEEBERER Net deferred
BRI TS tax assets recognised
BEFE on the balance sheet (25) (488)
TEEBERER Net deferred
BRI TS tax liabilities recognised
BEFRE on the balance sheet 1,079 30
1,054 (458)
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25 REARERMTHFRER(Z) 25 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (Continued)
() RIERMELIRIBEEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
VAR A 080 BT By 22 2 J2 RET AR A AY Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
AEINE BRI IEE E W R ER the following accumulated unused tax losses and deductible
B temporary differences:
rEE
The Group
—EENF —ETTLF
2008 2007
T Tt
$'000 $'000
AR ERER Deductible temporary differences 1,927 2,131
25t AR EA Accumulated unused
By AT HIE IR tax losses 39,318 37,425
41,245 39,556
NS e B ol e 0 7 = DN 2 ) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
J& X ) AT R E B = 2R A B AR of the above tax losses and deductible temporary differences
EFREHEE  RARAEEERER of certain subsidiaries as management of the Group considers
ABR-_ZEE)\F=ZA=1+—8 ®#F# that it is not probable as at 31 March 2008 that future taxable
MBS R EEE R EAERM S A1 profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
R Eh A &Y 5 48 DA 85 R SR FERR A A1l Y in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
AR K o IRIBIRITHP - SLLATE expire under current tax legislation.
MNEBTHRERRE -
26 0 26 Provisions
rEE
The Group
—sE\E  —TTLE
2008 2007
Fr T
$'000 $'000
RERG S 2EME Provision for long service payments 11,530 9,962
BRI Provision for reinstatement costs 13,657 11,228
25,187 21,190
B BREE [RE Less: amount included under
BF] TBRRFUE “current liabilities” (4,691) (2,053)
20,496 19,137
1 06 RFEEBERD T
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a)

1| (&) 26 Provisions (Continued)
REARRTS & 2 (a) Provision for long service payments
rEE
The Group
—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
5 Fr
$'000 $'000
REA—H At 1 April 9,962 9,706
FTYE B EESNER Additional provisions made 2,037 630
Firh FA #) 24 Provision utilised (469) (374)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 11,530 9,962

REFBEBRE  AEEERETE
ATERRERBRIEDFNRERE
BERRE N —FEHE - BISER
FRERENREFCHEEME - I
SRERBEASERAGEIREMRE
AEBFEFTOELS - NEEILE S Bt
AEETEMBEEMEE -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
under the Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund the above.

1E1E A AR YE (b) Provision for reinstatement costs
TEE
The Group
—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
5 FiT
$'000 $'000
MREA—A At 1 April 11,228 9,563
FrYE L BIRBINESE Additional provisions made 2,986 1,895
FrEh A Ry e Provision utilised (557) (230)
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 13,657 11,228

RIFEETATZNEERROGRR - &
SEZANHEREGZERRFIRERLE
EHEGH  BRARARASEAE-
At - AEBE 2 RAHSEENBERK
AR B AR ETEL T %4 -

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental premises at the
Group's cost upon expiry of the rental agreements. Provision
is therefore made for the best estimate of the expected
reinstatement costs to be incurred.
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27 BEMGER 27 Capital and Reserves
(a) AEE (@) The Group
RE ROGE SRR EAHE ENfE REEN 48
i Share  Share Contriouted  Capital Exchange Retained
Note capital premium  surplus reserve reserve  profits  Total
fr fr Tt fr fr Tt Tr
$000  $'000  $'000  §'000  §'000  $000  $'000
A5 ENA-A At 1 April 2006 125801 2027 23676 1442 (7529) 143,634 289,141
HERRE Dividends approved in respect
gl o of the previous year 10(0) - - (2,79%) - - - (22.7%)
HERENELT Exchange difference
AR on translation of financial
ErMEREE statements of the PRC subsidiaries - - - -8 -8
ERaf Profit for the year - - - - - 84669 84,669
REERERE Shares issued under share
kM option scheme 27000 1631 565 - - - - 1%
¥IER Issue expenses - 15 - - - - 15)
WERESHMRG Equity-settled share-based
BERNRS transactions - 6% - (58) - -3
KEE Dividends declared in respect
EE T of the current year 10(a) - - - - - (20290) (20,290)
R-EE+E-A=+-H At 31 March 2007 121522 3272 886 1384 (7,245) 208,013 333,832
RZBELENA—H At 1 April 2007 121522 3272 886 1384  (7,245) 208013 333832
LEERE Dividends approved in respect
fiRg of the previous year 10(b) - - - - - (30,758) (30,758)
BERENBAR Fichange difference
AR on translation of financial
EENERZR statements of the PRC subsidiaries - - - - 1410 - 1410
BHrE-F BT Release of exchange reserve upon
RIRES dissolution of a PRC subsidiary 4 - - - - 13 - 13
ERaf Profit for the year - - - - - 101,027 101,027
REERETE Shares issued under share
Bkt option scheme 27100 1304 1,185 - - - - 2489
¥1ER Issue expenses - - - - -
WERESHIRG Equity-settled share-based
BEMORS transactions - %8 - 79 - -0
EERFRIA Repurchase of own shares
-BNEE - par value paid 271 (1,720) - - - - - (1720)
-2HEE - premium and brokerage
NELER expenses paid 271 - (5404)  (886) - - (8168) (14458)
T5E Dividends declared in respect
EERRE of the current year 10(a) - - - - - (4246) (24,246)
R-2E/\E=A=1+-H At 31 March 2008 127106 - - 1463 (4484) 245868 369,953
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27 BEMER (=)
(b) ZNAT]

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(b) The Company

ke RGEE SRR ERRR  REER BE

Lif:: Share Share Contributed ~ Capital ~ Retained
Note capital ~ premium surplus reserve profits Total
i T i T i T
§'000 §000 §'000 §000 §'000 §000

R-BEAENA-H At 1 April 2006 125,891 2,027 88,454 1,442 109,573 327,387
LEERE Dividends approved in respect

HRE of the previous year 10(b) - - (79%) - - (29)
ERHH Profit for the year - - - - 093 w09
RERRESE Shares issued under share

BRM option Scheme 27(0) 1,631 565 - - - 2,1%
BITER Isse expenses - (15) - - - (15)
EREERD Equity-settled share-based

R BERNZS transactions - 695 - (58) - 637
KEE Dividends declared in respect

BEIRE of the current year 10(a) - - - - (2029)  (20,29)
RZEELE=A=1-H At 31 March 2007 12752 322 65,664 1384 180206 378,048
R-EELENA-H At 1 April 2007 121522 3272 65,664 1,384 180,206 378,048
LFE Dividends approved in respect

GENRS of the previous year 10(b) - - - - (30758)  (30,7%8)
FERT Profit for the year - - - - 98560 98,560
RERRETE Shares issued under share

Bkt option scheme 27100 1,304 1,185 - - - 2,489
¥IER IssUe expenses - 1) - - - (1)
IEREERLRE Equity-settled share-based

RERNOR S transactions - 98 - 79 - 1,047
EERF R Repurchase of own shares
-BAEE - par value paid A (1,720) - - - - (1,720)
-ENAENELER - premium and brokerage

expenses paid 27()i) - (5,404) (9,054) - - (14.458)

KEE Dividends declared in respect

R of the current year 10(a) - - - - (4246)  (24.246)
R-EE\E=A=+-H At 31 March 2008 127106 - 56,610 1,463 223,762 408,941
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27 RFEMER(Z)

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(c) MR (c) Share capital
—EENE e
2008 2007
R EE HE ROHE HEE
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
T’ T Fh& FIT
‘000 $'000 '000 $'000
SEERRA - Authorised:
BREBITEBR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
EBTRBERE - Issued and fully paid:
RUA—H At 1 April 127,522 127,522 125,891 125,891
BRI 81T Shares issued under share
BIRRt (5T option scheme (note i) 1,304 1,304 1,631 1,631
ElEERR D (Pf3Ei) Shares repurchased (note ii) (1,720) (1,720) - -
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 127,106 127,106 127,522 127,522
MI5E - Notes:

0]

BB IITD

RFEENERESBEARBERARAE
I A $£1,304,0000%( — T T+ 4F:
1,631,0000%) - {& 3 /42,489,0007T
(ZZ T +4:2,196,0007T ) E &
1,304,0000( Z & F + 4 : 1,631,000
JC ) EE ABR AN ER - 82 N A91,185,000
TT(—ZZT+ 4 1 565,0007T ) B2 A
AN B BR - 968,000 T( — EE + 4F ¢
695,0007T ) B4R 55 T 5% 1(0)(ii) BT 71| 49 B
RHEAHEE AR SER -

(i) Share issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
1,304,000 (2007: 1,631,000) ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of $2,489,000 (2007: $2,196,000), of which
$1,304,000 (2007: $1,631,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $1,185,000 (2007: $565,000) was credited to the
share premium account. $968,000 (2007: $695,000) has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with policy set out in note 1(o)ii).
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27 BEMGERE) 27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)

() R&A(4E) (c) Share capital (Continued)
Mzt : (&) Notes: (continued)
(i) BAKXHFRMD (iiy Purchase of own shares
REBE_ZTETEN\F=A=+—HItF During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company repurchased
[E » AR R X FTIE B A & R D its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:
T

BRAE RN

2 8% A £ EERHEE BafE RIEE FritiafE
Number of  Highest price  Lowest price
Date of shares paid per paid per Aggregate
repurchase repurchased share share price paid
JT 7T T
$ $ $'000
—ETLFNA+TEA 17 August 2007 363,500 9.49 9.22 3,402
ZEELFAAMNA 4 September 2007 3,000 9.81 9.81 29
—TTLFNALH 7 September 2007 26,000 9.92 9.92 258
—TTLFNATH 10 September 2007 84,000 9.85 9.80 826
“ER+FNA+—H 11 September 2007 60,000 9.85 9.81 590
—ETLFNATNR 18 September 2007 60,000 9.70 9.70 582
—ET+F+A=H 3 October 2007 38,500 9.75 9.75 375
—ET+F+AMA 4 October 2007 27,500 9.76 9.76 269
—ETLFTATRA 15 October 2007 117,000 9.73 9.72 1,138
—ETLFTA+TEA 17 October 2007 53,500 9.62 9.62 515
—ETLFTATNA 18 October 2007 29,500 9.64 9.64 284
TR+ FTAZT=HR 23 October 2007 40,000 9.75 9.75 390
—EENF=HAA 5 March 2008 90,500 9.20 9.16 832
—EENF=ARA 6 March 2008 126,500 9.20 9.20 1,164
—EENF=ALEH 7 March 2008 600,000 9.10 9.08 5,460
1,719,500 16,114
BREAKRMECEEZBEINRTHE A The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued
AR A B B B TTRE AN E AR FE R = share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
ELOERMDAEE o 30 ERRSD of these shares. The premium and brokerage expenses paid on
Y MR EENELERADERAD the repurchase of the shares were charged to the Company’s and
TIRAEBSEETHL the Group’s reserves.
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27 RFEMER(Z)
(0 BA&GE)

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

5T (48) Notes: (continued)
(i) REEB B AREMMBERITERRE (i) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance
& R 65X sheet date
RTAH TEHE 168 —EENE TR
Exercise
Date granted Exercise period price 2008 2007
T £ | 8
$ Number Number
ZZE=E-A4A ZEENE-A-AEZZE/\§+=A=1—A 1 5,000 10,500
7 February 2003 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2008
ZEE=E-A4A ZERRE-A-AEZZE/\§+ZA=1+—H 1 5,500 13,000
7 February 2003 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2008
ZEE=E-A4A ZEERE-A-HEZZE/\§TZA=1—A 1 4,500 15,750
7 February 2003 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008
ZEE=E-A4A 2R E-A-HEZZE\§+ZA=1+—A 1 6,000 375,250
7 February 2003 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2008
ZEEMENAZR 2R E-A-HEZZE\§+ZA=1+—A 2.075 - 500,000
2 August 2004 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2008
“EEMENAZA ZEEN\F-A-HEZZE/\§+=A=1+—H 2.075 - 200,000
2 August 2004 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008
“EEMEAA-R ZERHFNAZT=RE-EE/\FAAZTZRA 2325 100,000 200,000
1 September 2004 23 September 2007 to 22 September 2008
ZZEEMEAA-R ZEE\FNAZT=RE-EENFAAZTZR 2325 200,000 200,000
1 September 2004 23 September 2008 to 22 September 2009
“ZTREMAZTAA ZETHEAATEAEZS-TF A=A 350 - 120,000
25 April 2005 14 June 2007 to 13 June 2010
“EERENA-TRA “EE\FRATEAE=E——F~A+=H 350 120,000 120,000
25 April 2005 14 June 2008 to 13 June 2011
“EERENA-TRA “EENERATRAE=E & A+=H 350 120,000 120,000
25 April 2005 14 June 2009 to 13 June 2012
“EERENA-TRA —E-ZFERATEAE=E-=F/~A1+Z=H 350 120,000 120,000

25 April 2005

14 June 2010 to 13 June 2013

1 12 KPEEBEBRA A
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



27 BEMGEERZ)
(0 BA&GE)
BT - (48)

(iii) TR E B R AR S A R AT {6 ) R A A

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iiiy Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance

R (&) sheet date (continued)
RTAY s 158 “EENE “TTtRE
Exercise
Date granted Exercise period price 2008 2007
T B 8
$ Number Number
“ZR+ETZAZH —ET\E+-A-BEF-MFE+-A=1AH 9.97 820,000 -
3 December 2007 1 December 2008 to 30 November 2014
—ZE+F+-A=A —ZENET-A-AE-Z-ME+—A=1A 997 820,000 -
3 December 2007 1 December 2009 to 30 November 2014
“ZR+ETZAZH —E-TF+-A-BE-T-ME+-A=1AH 9.97 820,000 -
3 December 2007 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2014
—ZE+F+-A=A —Z——4+-f-AE-F-ME+-AF=1A 997 820,000 -
3 December 2007 1 December 2011 to 30 November 2014
“ZR+ETZAZH —E--F+-A-BE-F-NFE+-A=1H 9.97 820,000 -
3 December 2007 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2014
4,781,000 1,994,500
BOBRERE T ERE AR REIR Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary

RAREBRAET - BRELE
PR — F AR R P B IHRE I

24

share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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27 &
(d) &
(i)

(ii)

EGxE(2)

BHMEEF A%

1757 E

B RERNERSIARAINA
A BREMBFE 150 FE 15718 A &=
Z1981F(RAREARIFTRE -

[ 5
[E R FREERETBEXBOME
BRFELHNMBINEZRE - AR
ARBM G 1 () PTEN Y & R B R B 12
EE 54 &t o

(iif) BAZER

RE-NANANFHN—REH £ &
EAER QB EK AR R EH M E
NE e ARBFBAMBLRFNEG
HFEEFEBAARRDEITRND
EENEBCDIARRRNHAR
R o NEBERBA BT AT
RAEIM IR AEE R R E AR
BARARRRIFEEEEHBITRO D
[EREGIE ¢

AR AREGTERIE198]
FARBVERIFIMRE - REBRE
19818 REER) » AR BHEA
BBERATANDIK

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

1(s).

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus. The
Group's contributed surplus represents the excess of the
aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital and
share premium of the former holding company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company under
the reorganisation.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution.

114

RREEEERDE]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



27 BEMGEERZ)
(d) REHIEBNB®(E)

(iii) AN EER (&)
Am - ETINERT - KRBT EE
INHARBREIRSKER S HIEL
DK

(iv)

(v)

A SRR R S BB 0E S B
HIMEE 3%

(a)

HEEMAZEREERMN IR
HBERAEDBTRARR D
it EERAY AR

(b)

BB BB RENE 1)) ATE
AR REROZHEO SR

R TARAEEBRENER
HEFARTTEHENRAEE -

FER A 2 R EEE
RZEENF=A=+—H  A/#
DEFARBERENFEHBTE
£280,372,0000( — & & + F ¢
245,870,0007T) - EEREEHE
EED IR KRB EE29.010(=F
T £ 4F :24.01l) & 36,861,000
TT(—ZZ+4F : 30,780,00070) &
BRI S ER12.00l( ZFT+4F :
) & 15,253,000 ( — 2 +
FE)  BURENEE R MR
REAE -

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Contributed surplus (continued)
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(o)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $280,372,000 (2007: $245,870,000).
After the balance sheet date the Directors proposed
a final dividend of 29.0 cents (2007: $24.0 cents) per
share amounting to $36,861,000 (2007: $30,780,000)
and a special dividend of 12.0 cents (2007: nil) per share
amounting to $15,253,000 (2007: nil). These dividends
have not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.
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27 BEMER (=)
(e) BEAEHE

AEBEEEANTIEANREERR
BIREmMEE - R ERE B BREA
B 7K P R EE T B LA BUBREE LA B BB AR
BISHE @ #ERRFRHDRE -

RZEBEENF=ZA=+—H ' ~&H
48 f& FX3%3,350,00070( — T E +F -
15,061,0007T) e SR =ZZEZENF = A
=+—H BELERAEAEERER
HARAMBEEOLER)E0I% (ZF
T+F:45%) c RZEZENFE=HA
=+—H AEENEETK  THF
MR & A ££217,397,000( ==
T 4F 1 214,596,0007T) °

AEBEG N E SR MEEEE AR
B NEARREERL RS R
= IR [ 3 L AR 2 B AR Y B B A AR
& < EES 1 - 30 A BT R A 48 7 5iA
MREARREELFE -

27 Capital and Reserves (Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2008, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $3,350,000 (2007: $15,061,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 0.9% at 31 March
2008 (2007: 4.5%). The Group had structured deposits, time
deposits and cash balances as at 31 March 2008 amounting to
$217,397,000 (2007: $214,596,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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28 B EEER

(a) BEFHRAR
AEESREFEKBARRLREE -
RBES « FIRFMEERR - AEEE
FHR TP BEREBREMESME Y
BB DIARR S ©

(i)

EEmE
AEENEERRTIZ2KRE BEE
FAMEAD UK ~ |RITERRFR
RITHOIRE ©

ShE W AR SR AN E A JE W R T & - AR
SEAEMEBRERERMILES
BERFEERLENEP - TEEP
EURBEE - EBHTREARN
R MEER - EERRILEHR
ERIEREFRIFR

AEBENEBEFR  EHERMR
TREB-REFREERRENE
AR -

AEBAASZNEERR ERAE
EREXRTBHEEREENERE S
B o BRI RE30PTE A 2 B3R 3 B
BEARMRITHEAGEEREMHHE
TRIASN » 78 S B 30 S 12 41 (o] EoAth
BREENEBAEAREERR -

(i) HEBELER

AEENBREEHRERARKNE
AARREBE SRR - AERER T
HORSHEE ARTESREE
BB RANAHEEERE ke
RHAREMORBESHER

28 Financial Risk Management

(@) Management of financial risk
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that wholesale of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. At the balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s structured deposits, time deposits and cash
balances are normally placed with financial institutions of
high credit quality.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Company in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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28 MBRBER(Z)
(a) BIEBEREMR(E)

28 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Management of financial risk (Continued)

(i) TEELERE (&) (ii) Liquidity risk (continued)
TERFIINAEBRARRNESRE The following table details the remaining contractual
BEREE B e ML TSI HAFKIE - maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
ZEERMABRHNERTRESR the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on
E(BEANTERN RSN (EZE) R contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
REZBRNERFERFTENF SR payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
FOERREEBNAARIEZEXMA based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
HAm %I 4R - earliest date the Group and the Company can be required

to pay:
+5E
The Group
—EENE
2008
ANLE
FRRE B8
REE RELE -ER DRWE
More than
Total 1year
contractual but less
Carrying  undiscounted Within than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years
r r r r
§'000 §000 §'000 §000
BEARTER Secured bank loans 3,350 (3,409) (3,058) (351)
e Creditors and accrued
HETER expenses 219,758 (219,758) (219,758) -
223,108 (223,167) (222,816) (351)
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28 MBRBRER(Z)
(a) BEMBRMR(E)
(i) RBEZER(E)

28 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Management of financial risk (Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

ANLR
nEEE
FEE  RERR

A5E
The Group
ZEREE

2007

B—-5m BmER
—ER DRRE PRAE
Morethan ~ More than

Total 1 year 2 years
contractual but less but less
Carrying undiscounted Within than than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
i i Fr i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BREARTER Secured bank loans 6,350 (6,707) (3,259) (3,097) (351)
EER Other loans 8,711 8,711) (8,711) - -
JERTEER Creditors and accrued
T ER expenses 199,907  (199,907)  (199,907) - -
214968  (215325)  (211,877) (3,097) (351)
FAUN
The Company
“EENE
2008
BRLEX
RS
BEE MEAE -£R
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000
AR Creditors and accrued
METER expenses 1,391 (1,391) (1,391)
FERHBARRE Amount due to subsidiaries 27,875 (27,875) (27,875)
29,266 (29,266) (29,266)
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28 MBRBER(Z)
(a) BEEMBRARE)
(i) wBED AR (E)

28 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Management of financial risk (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

YN
The Company
ZETE
2007
BHEXR
wREE
REE MERE —FN
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
FERTARSR Creditors and accrued
MIEEFTER expenses 1,491 (1,491) (1,491)
AN NG R Amount due to subsidiaries 27,875 (27,875) (27,875)
29,366 (29,366) (29,366)

(iif) F &

AEEOFNERBREZRA SRR
R EEFERAE BAEK

—EENF=A=1+—8 " A5t
FEER EFTFES0ED - N E
FiEEMESRFITE  AEEK
FR1& s T & A R D, 18 N 497,000
JL(ZZZT 4 : 288,0007T) °

B LAgREITERENER
HEREMNE YRAFRES
B T A% B AT IE ) 2 L R o
i o SOEEM LTt TRAKRERE
BHNEHABREEZ TEFELE
B LR R B E AT pE T (S -
—ERLF oM DIRRHEREE
HETT

(iii) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from structured
deposits, time deposits and floating rate borrowings.

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's profit after tax by approximately $7,000 (2007:
$288,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.
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28 MERBRER(Z)
(a) BRFHKEAK(E)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

B R bz

AEENGEERMEASZNEBRR
BB UETENEBTRIRTT
TR (2EME16%19) - HRETT
EE S M - ANEETEHRE T, B K

AAEE
BRNe@mT AN rESRTA
WEASREEAR _-_TENF N

TE+F=ZA=+—HBHHAALEE
HERK :

28 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Management of financial risk (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency risk at the balance sheet
date arose from structured deposits and cash at banks
denominated in United State Dollars (“USD") (see notes
16 and 19). As USD is pegged to HKD, the Group does
not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD
exchange rate.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31 March 2008
and 2007 except as follows:

rEH
The Group
—EENFE ZET+F
2008 2007
REEHE ANEE RKE®E AnEE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
Tt Tt Tt v
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R EN AT ER Other financial assets

HEherEE at amortised cost 19,393 19,501 64,452 63,100

JRE U K A B B R R SR IR S R R R
B RBRRBREEERS - &
LIRS REZEFEREENR
REELTEESR -

AN §= o) =118
RBEZRNAABELZEBEES
E(REREFHE - Bl trn
EA N B B B R ) M
CE

(vi)

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair
values.

Estimation of fair values

The fair values of structured deposits are estimated by
valuation techniques such as discount cash flow method,
risk neutral methodology and option and swap pricing
model.
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28 ®¥MTR(&E)
() EEFBRAR (&)

(i) 2B Ea 1A ()
EEARSREFR AR - KK
BenENMESREEEENX
fEmE > MATRANITR R SEE
WERTARGEE RN SRR
Ko BEMEMEERAR  Alg
NEEBNMIZHBRIEREE -

28 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Financial risk management (Continued)
(vi) Estimation of fair values (Continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate is a market related
rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date.
Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on
market related data at the balance sheet date.

(b) &I EAENHE (b) Categories of financial instruments
AEE RAF
The Group The Company
“EEN\E —TE+HF CZTENE —TETL+HF
2008 2007 2008 2007
T Fi T Fi
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SREE Financial assets
AR BEFAEZE Other financial assets at fair
MEMSREE value through profit or loss 19,952 34,947 - -
BN et Loans and receivables
- BN &e — Debtors, deposits and
ISSEINEA prepayments 71,194 66,145 201 184
NG E e — Amount due from subsidiaries = - 88,149 61,344
~ DA SER R R E R — Other financial assets
HihemEE at amortised cost 19,393 64,452 = -
-REMBLEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 178,052 115,197 112 9%
268,639 245,794 88,462 61,624
288,591 280,741 88,462 61,624
A= Financial liabilities
BERK AR Amortised cost
- BRI — Creditors and accrued
RETER expenses 219,758 199,907 1,391 1,491
- AR AR 0R — Amounts due to subsidiaries = - 27,875 27,875
- BERRITER — Secured bank loans 3,350 6,350 = -
- HpEHR — Other loans = 8,711 — -
223,108 214,968 29,266 29,366
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(a)

RZZFZENF=ZR=1T—BKREN
MXAKRERBREANREEFHNE
RAGEIT

29 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2008 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

—2E\F  —TELH

2008 2007

FTr T+t

$'000 $'000

HES Contracted for 48 4,414
EREERRTL Authorised but not contracted for 2,373 5,622
2,421 10,036

o RZZEENF=ZA=+— In addition, the Group had outstanding other commitments

B K%lmﬁ«é&é%mé%%
FBARE T i X AR FEB A5 3R R AN IR B
AR B A A& A573,0000T( = F
T4 : 1,358,0007T) ©

RZZEZNF=A=+—H " RE
NABREEEHER R REND
RIEMERENFBEEZAT

of $573,000 at 31 March 2008 (2007: $1,358,000) in
respect of the contracting fee for operation of a fast food
restaurant not provided for in the financial statements.

(b) At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of properties are payable as follows:

#%EE

The Group
—ETN\F = —BTLH
2008 2007
Fi Fit
$'000 $'000
—FN Within 1 year 166,014 152,956
—FIRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 195,584 171,838
hFE After 5 years 23,325 2,300
384,923 327,094

ANEFNEEHERBBOWE -
EUHE—RULTAEE —FE=H
FoUTEAEREERBEINHAKE
H o ERMAGKEEHETE -
HEMNREREREL  URBT
e BTSSR EEEI%E
20% (ZZETHF 1 2%E20%) 5
REARENEEERETE -

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
increased to reflect market rentals. The contingent rent
payments are determined based on 9% to 20% (2007:
2% to 20%) of the turnover over the base rents.
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29 &g (&)

AEBELHEIBLHAEYE - K=
EENE=ZA=+—8  BETA
FRBR Y o> T FH 2278 B4 A 18 AT W ER
H KD H IR B ER AH4,271,0007T
ZET 4 :13,053,0007T) °

30 B/AR

31

RZZZNF=A=+—H AREA
HETE2EMBARESNERBERRK
HARITHEREEMARITIELIER o

REER EERABEBEERTHER
RAWRENTEET KR REE
B ARRRBEZERBAENEK
BEAMBEHRBRARESIRIMNER
{= B %831,919,000t( — & T + F:
33,162,0007T) * EHZERREEH
HREE -

7R R A I B % R IR R AR T AR B R
A RERERABEELRR S
B MBERERZER

EXRABAXS
BAPBRREMAIDAHREORS R
REERIN  NEBHETTT NIIERRER T

5

(a) EMMIEE7FIIRGE @ BAREEARN
e /RENRRREZHHIA - B
SRBERE B TRAIN(2RIH
i£5(b))

29 Commitments (continued)

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to
be received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March
2008 are $4,271,000 (2007: $13,053,000).

30 Contingent Liabilities

31

At 31 March 2008, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of
the Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantee is
the amount of the facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries
that are covered by the guarantee, being $31,919,000 (2007:
$33,162,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.

Material related party transaction

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff cost” (see note 5(b)).

1 24 KPEEBEHBRAA
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EXRABAERR(E)

b) ERFERN ARA—RWERQ
AR EBA—BME - FiEH
Pengto® & B == # B + MPengto
Al —TEARRBEE R IEER

HEMETESES - o &R
BrRAEBHEXARRELZEIY A
FENEET - FRAEENHEEX
i A1,247,00000( — 2T + F -
1,247,0007T) °

(O EAFERN ' FERRAERTAQA
—XMBARTIE - AEAEAM
REBH—FTEME - FRAT A
HFFr EE 5180,000t( &+
£F : 180,0007T) ©

EARFEERN KRR —KKBRAA
[ Front Land A A —IE#)2 - Front
land W ERKREZHEEALERR
TEREBRREAL - BEBLER
BRBLTENER - FRETELEDN
4 EHAE1,966,000(ZEZT+
£F 1 1,966,0007T) °

Bt A s FFIER

BsE14 - 2470285 B B A i 2R E
MERTERERERTARARBEDN
BEMEREAZHER - EfhFE/H
BB EARNT

EEEERE
AEBAESELEREHRIMINRD
8 URHEBEEEER S A TRE
BR - IRBBERMEETR - B
AEEEEM A EIZEE - FEMIFR
MEE R EEEHYE TS HRBELNSR
B a1 AT UK (0] SRR B b RHE R ERT -
FERRFENGDHERE o

31

32

Material Related Party Transaction (continued)

(b) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion. New Champion is wholly
beneficially owned by Pengto, a company beneficially
owned by a trust of which Mr. Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
discretionary object. In addition, Mr. Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
and his wife, Madam Cindy Lau Shuk Ching are directors
of New Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the
year amounted to $1,247,000 (2007: $1,247,000).

(c) During the year, New Champion agreed to grant a licence
to a subsidiary of the Company to use a storeroom in
Hong Kong. Licence fee paid during the year amounted to
$180,000 (2007: $180,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Front Land. The ultimate beneficial owners
of Front Land are Mr Lo Hoi Chun, who is a cousin of Mr.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, and his associate. Rental expenses
incurred during the year amounted to $1,966,000 (2007:
$1,966,000).

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Notes 14, 24 and 28 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value
of share options granted and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to assess whether there is any
indication that a fixed asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the fixed asset
is estimated. Changes in facts and circumstances may result
in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication of
impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future years.

125



B RS R AR B RE

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LABEETITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32
(b)

EatEEtAER (2)

e

ElE B E A ERAIRIERT A ARG
BITE - ARBEeERRMEENET
A AHEIR - AREE FERC ARG B
EPTE S B - Al A HIRR AR EAR
BERARBEEENKRET - MRARHA
R ENENGEIBEARER  Ee
HEBARRYF NI ES H -

REMENGE

IEHTEE13(b) At - IRE Y ERIR RSB
Y EERGEMITAETOMGE  XER
AHESWAFBEARMET S BEEES
FEMARARBEIRK -

REEAABER  HEMZSRRES
AR EEDRET - BREEE
18 7 3 Bh Ko EL AR RIAR 0 B9 AR 35 1) SR 3R B
MISHEAREF RETHHEE o R
BAERSE  BEECHEL THEY
REZGEETDERRTISZENR

PSR
AEBARZERAERNEMAPTE
o EEEMS BRI BIEDL A/ -
RBEBEBBRED  RHEZXHMFE
BRI EATEE i &AM
HARE RN RVICEEE  ZAEEEK
SHIEHRORE N FEMNEHRMET
HIAR BT E

EREBAAENRRE ERBAFIASG
B BURVE IR B A (R BIA N
AR SR B FIO (3t - BRI
PR WS BB (B R ok @ Bk R -

RERG & %6

Mt EE26(a) PR - AEBRIZEEE
R IR IGRDI VR E 1F h REIRTS & 46 o
AREEDIRRTNEHER NG ER
tEREE - WERAETERE - SRR
B B EIEL AL - AEBERFHERE
BR7#%5 & A T ER A A 5% 5 IR AR P BE R 44
FRRARREVER o INRZ M HIBEM
BISED  SEFERRFEERG R
SKEE

32 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

(b)

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 13(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are transactions during the ordinary course of
business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year
in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 26(a), the Group makes provision for long
service payments in accordance with the requirement of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.
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EatEEtAER (2)

EERAZES
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32
(f)

33

Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)
Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 26(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of respective rental
agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for the
Year Ended 31 March 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2008 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

EUT A

2 EBRN
SETHBEX
Effective for
periods beginning
on or after

(EBMBREER])FESR 256
HKFRS 8, Operating segments

(EEMBHREERDE 2RISR AN BEREN

— SR R St |

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment —

Vesting conditions and cancellations

—ETNF-A—H
1 January 2009

—EENF—HA—H

1 January 2009
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Principal Subsidiaries
(ABHBFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NAER RUREE I BRIT/EAMERFE  ADAFKRAZAES TEXK
Percentage of shares held
Place of incorporation/ by the Company
establishment and Particulars of issued/ EE 553
Name of company operation registered capital directly indirectly  Principal activity
BE¥RERAA &R 2REREEIT - 100%  MERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
MABRAT i IREREET - 100% REE
Big Keen Limited Hong Kong 1 share of $1 each Motor vehicle holding
Cision Development Limited 2 QREREET - 100% K28
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a restaurant
RRE (BM) ERBRAF &% 1,000,000 FHREEIT - 68% HTEE
Fairwood (Guangzhou) Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of §1 each To be dissolved
Development Limited
KIRTE (RF) ERAR AT i 10,000 ERAE T - 65% HTEE
Fairwood (Macau) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each To be dissolved
Development Limited
RERE (RY) BRERAT BB 10,000 BHREE1 T - 100% HE#R
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of §1 each Investment holding
Development Limited
579,437% 100% - RERR
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* EBERRES/BA BRAEB0IET
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 579,437 shares of Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong US$0.01 each
KRERE (B2) BRAT &k PEBRAET - 100% HERERER
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Restaurant licences
(Management) Limited holding
10 ERARERAEI0TR - 100% BEEHRER
579437 ERZRELE
ARERERRRA &k ki &RaE107T
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares Operation of a chain of
of $10 each fast food restaurants
and 579,437 non-voting
deferred shares of $10 each
KREREBRAT &% 350,000RFHEEI0T - 100% EEe%
Fairwood Investments Limited Hong Kong 350,000 shares of $10 each Dormant
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* XB#BREE/E% \REREEIET - 100% FEEE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each Trademark holding
Islands/Hong Kong
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NAER RURBEHE BRIT/HAMERHE  ARTDFRRERAZESN TERHK
Percentage of shares held
Place of incorporation/ by the Company
establishment and Particulars of issued/ EE 583
Name of company operation registered capital directly indirectly  Principal activity
SEYRERAR BB JREREEIT - 100% HERERE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a fast food
restaurant
YEERARAT BB JREREEIT - 100%  MERE
Great Choice Development Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Limited
VERRARAA BB 2REHREEIT - 100%  MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ARERERAR BB JREREEIT - 100% WxRE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BER (M) REBRLA) &% 1,000,000 REREEIT - 8% HTER
Mario (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares To be dissolved
Development Limited of $1 each
EXERARLA BB 2REREEIT - 100% WxRE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
EXRBERARRA &R EERAEET - 100% KEREREE
Professional Institutional Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Operation of canteens
Catering Limited and a restaurant
RIFERARAT BB 2REREEIT - 100%  MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BHEERERAT &k QREREET - 100% WERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RIRREREBRAF G 2,600,000%7 - 100% BEEHRERE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast The PRC US$2,600,000 Operation of a chain of
Food Limited * fast food restaurants
RAERBRAT BB JREREEIT - 100% WxRE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERARAA BB 2REHREEIT 100% - ERRmE
Starwide Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Management of
food counters
RAERERAR BB 2REREEIT - 100% WxRE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REERERLT &R JRERAEREIT - 100%  MERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
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FTENMBAT
Principal Subsidiaries
(ABHFIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Rau A
LEER RUREEHH

BRfT/AMERE ARFRERAZEDL

Percentage of shares held

Place of incorporation/ by the Company
establishmentand  Particulars of issued/ EE 553

Name of company operation registered capital directly indirectly  Principal activity
TEXRARLH BB 2REREEIT - 100% #ERE
Thousand Island Food Plaza Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of canteens
FEERARLA BB 2REREE T - 100%  MERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Property investment
BEERARLR) i 2REREEIT - 100% WxRE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
EH¥RARLA) BB 2REREE T - 100%  MERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Property investment

(* A ERABWIEARE [ AT EBHER)

(@ RZZETN\F=ZA=+—H FHES
RGN EBREZNIE AR BR
KO RMEER A HHREMN AR KT MR
BEFEN%(ZTTLF 4%)R6%
(ZFTEF 1 4%) -

(o) BMBARBEEADETEERSE -

(* Companies not audited by KPMG)

(@) At 31 March 2008, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets
constituting approximately 5% (2007: 4%) and 6% (2007:
4%) respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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Five Year Group Financial Summary
A ETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE=A=1+-ALEE
Year ended 31 March

—EZ)N\E —ETHFE —ZERF —ZTRF —TINF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ST T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S Results:
EER Turnover 1,435,993 1,204,863 986,700 838,880 745,254
eyl Profit from operations 121,169 95,818 73,998 38,683 6,483
BEMA Finance costs (1,361) (2,829) (721) (600) (1,845)
PR AT & A Profit before taxation 119,808 92,989 73,277 38,083 4,638
TS Income tax (18,781) (8,320) 1,806 617) (947)
FEHA Profit for the year 101,027 84,669 75,083 37,466 3,691
UTEFEESS Attributable to:
ARRERERE Equity shareholders
of the Company 101,027 84,669 75,083 37,466 3,704
LR RER Minority interests - - - - (13)
FEEF Profit for the year 101,027 84,669 75,083 37,466 3,691
EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
ETrEE Fixed assets 306,952 277,407 245,234 226,976 258,135
kS Goodwil 1,001 1,001 1,001 (1,048) (1,284)
EXRIEEE Deferred tax assets 25 488 3,326 210 -
Bifske Rental deposits paid 29,261 31,897 22,619 - -
EthemEE Other financial assets 39,345 40,439 - - -
MEEE Current assets 248,693 226,546 190,964 154,678 126,925
EE4E Total assets 625,277 577,778 463,144 380,816 383,776
mEAE Current liabilities (232,061) (218,468) (147,167) (128,448) (121,801)
E =L Non-current liabilities (23,263) (25,478) (26,836) (10,722) (47,020)
BEFE Net assets 369,953 333,832 289,141 241,646 214,955
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Five Year Group Financial Summary
UABHFITR)

ressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PR -

(M

2)

MN-ZEXE=ZA=+—H0 AEEHNE
~ T4 1% £22,619,0007T ~ &8 B AN £
7,803,0007T « & HA AR 75 & 4 1%9,382,000
JT N B U ER AR £ 42 43,301,0005T * HE M
RBEE/BEEFOEAIRDEE, 8
& UFARBEE-—ST+E=A=1+—H1H
LIEFERFEANIIHRA R o LIERTHNHIHRA
AEBFBRRBEEREE RER -

AR - FBEFREAGREBRER D BN
LLEI R AAT o

R-BEXRE  AEERKTEBEHAL
SEMHE TR REEFTAKE AR
SRR - ERETT R BIN— 8 - 3
WEB(EB P BREERDTA(ER S
EHY  EUENDHD  —TZTRFRE
REENEFREENNSTBRBERNR
AT EH -

Notes:

(M

@)

Rental deposits paid of $22,619,000, provision for reinstatement costs
of $7,803,000, provision for long service payments of $9,382,000
and rental deposits received of $3,301,000 as at 31 March 2006 have
been re-classified from current assets/liabilities to non-current assets/
liabilities to conform with the presentation adopted for the year ended
31 March 2007. The revised presentation reflects better the nature
and the terms of the balances.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier years
for comparison purposes.

In 2006, the Group adopted a number of new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA as part of its ongoing programme to align HKFRSs
with International Accounting Standards. In the above analysis, the
figures for 2005 and earlier years have only been restated to the extent
that the new accounting policies were adopted retrospectively.

132kﬁ%$§ﬁmﬂﬁ

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



AEBRISHREN S
Investment Properties held by the Group

A—EENF=ZA=+—H
as at 31 March 2008

B BRAR HEH

Location Existing use Term of lease

RERYIT

&=

[ 35 =

BEPEEN B

5510352 104055 75 4 Gk 5

Shop Unit Nos. 1035 — 1040 Shops Medium-term
on Level 2,

Lowu Commercial Plaza,
Guangchang South Road,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

PRC

R

2E

EmEHEE2E 705

EEVNE

34 L5 L6 L11-L12- 113~

L14 X% 315% B A MIFIP 135 ALK BBALIA K
1418 A1 ~ A2 ~ ASRAGER K

BAE71£B1 ~ B2 ~ B5MB6E(L BR KRB &R

Units A1, A2, A5 and A6 on Warehouses and Medium-term
14th Floor and car parking

Units B1, B2, B5 and B6 on spaces

7th Floor of Block B,

Private Car Parking Space Nos. P13 and
Lorry Parking Space Nos. L4, L5, L6,
L11,L12, L13, L14 and L31 on

3rd Floor,

Po Yip Building,

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road,

Tsuen Wan,

New Territories.
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o J5 #e b
Store Address

RPREREE

FAIRWOOD FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS

s
Hong Kong

b 31E
Address

TIR T EIERAVA-A3REIEE T IBH N 4-958 4
FERKEEI3-103 B mRmEREM T
hIRE G AET38- 485 BEF AE2FE

FIRERANBH 368 EN RS2 FTIE2035 4

SEERBI6HERRES AP U B
EEE T A4

‘‘‘‘‘ BT EE B 1385 R BEINKE 1 FIED 14

B E(FE128-1505 AL KB 1AM

EFERRERI183RE MP021E201-206F

SR8 B T A4-485 B R 1-248

HHEE19-23BREAEM T — R R 112

BEILERE 14850 T 1584

FE LB 1SR R E 5 (AE)218532-S3651 44

L2555 ™D 23-265% 4
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Shop Nos. 4-9, G/F, Smithfield Court,
41A-43 Smithfield, Kennedy Town

G/F, New Victory House, Nos. 93-103,
Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan

2/F, Manning House, 38-48 Queen’s Road Central,
Central

Shop 203, 2/F, Welland Plaza, Welland Building,
368 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Shop B, G/F and Shop A2 & A3, Upper G/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt road,

Admiralty

Shop D1, 1/F, China Overseas Building,
138 Lockhart Road, Wanchai

Portion A, 1/F, Ming Fung Building,
128-150 Wanchai Road, Wanchai

Shops 201-206, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

1/F & 2/F, Fortune Centre,
44-48 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay

Shop No. 1 on G/F and the whole 1/F,
Professional Building, 19-23 Tung Lo Wan Road

Shop No. 1 on the Ground Floor of No. 148
Electric Road at No. 148 Electric Road

Shops Nos. $32-S36, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North),
1 Kornhill Road

Shop Nos. D 23-26, G/F, No. 25 Tai On Street,
Lei King Wan, Sai Wan Ho

M/F, Galaxy Plaza, 2 Mong Lung Street, Shaukeiwan

Shop 201, Tin Wan Shopping Centre, Tin Wan Estate,

Aberdeen

Shop A on 1/F of Albert House, 26 Cheng Tu Road &
12 Sai On Street, Aberdeen

Shop 5, Multi-storey Carpark, Ap Lei Chau Estate,
Ap Lei Chau

BE

Phone no.

2856 8688

2856 8650

2856 8661

2856 8640

2856 8665

2856 8651

2856 8659

2856 8663

2856 8660

2856 8682

2856 8679

2856 8689

2856 8669

2856 8611

2856 8645

2856 8656

2856 8623
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Shop Nos. 206-210, Level 2 of Phase 2,
Lei Tung Commercial Centre, Lei Tung Estate
Ap Lei Chau

Shop Nos. 501, 532-533 and 535-538, 5/F,
Chi Fu Landmark, Pokfulam

Shop No. 113, Level 1, Hing Wah Shopping Centre,
Hing Wah Estate, Chai Wan

Shop S, G/F & Whole of 1/F, Bo Yip Building,
6 Ashley Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Lower Ground Floor, Yue Hwa International Building,
No. 1 Kowloon Park Drive, No. 7 Ashley Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Concession KOW 57, In-Town Check-In Hall,
MTR Kowloon Station, 1 Austin Road West

Shops 303-305, Level 3, Grand Century Place,
Mongkok

Portion A of 1/F, Hung Wai Building,
3-5 Fa Yuen Street, Mongkok

Shop No. F25, 2/F, Oi Man Shopping Centre,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin

Shops 2-4 Lower G/F, Ka Hing Lau, Ka Wai Chuen,
48 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hung Hom

Shop 2, G/F, 5D-F Ma Hang Chung Road, To Kwa Wan

Shop2 and Shop 25-26, G/F., Chong Chien Court,
No. 331-361 To Kwa Wan Road

Shop 3, G/F, Trade Square, 681 Cheung Sha Wan Road

G/F, Precious Industrial Centre,
No. 18 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan

Shop 1, Hoi Lai Shopping Centre, Hoi Lai Estate,
Sham Shui Po

Shop 312-313, 3/F, Dragon Centre,
37K Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

B

Phone no.

2871 4413

2856 8683

2856 8687

B

Phone no.

2856 8606

2856 8628

2856 8646

2856 8655

2856 8657

2856 8695

2856 8633

2856 8621

2856 8678

2856 8615

2856 8691

2856 8685

2856 8637
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Shop Nos. 125B-127, First Floor, Fu Cheong Shopping

Centre, Sham Mong Road, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
Shops 9-13, G/F, Block 42, Shek Kip Mei Estate
Level 2, Wang Fai Centre, Wang Tau Hom Estate

Shop 317, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre,
Tsz Wan Shan

Shop 1, Market Block, Ping Shek Estate, Choi Hung

Unit 108, 1/F, Commercial & Garage Block
of Richland Garden, 80 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay

Shops F210-212, Podium One, Phase Ill, Amoy Plaza,
77 Ngau Tau Kok Road

Shops 2, G/F, Mido Mansion,
51-63 Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong

Shop 116, 1/F, Kwun Tong Plaza, 68 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong

Shop 101, 1/F, Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre,
Sau Mau Ping Estate, Kwun Tong

Shop B8, Basement 1, Commercial Complex,
Laguna City, Kwun Tong

Shops 32 & 33, Unit 1 on Level 1 (site 1) 36
of Commercial Development, Sceneway Garden,
8 Sceneway Road, Lam Tin

Shop No. 206, 2/F., Lei Yue Mun Plaza

Shop 102, G/F, Po Lam Shopping Centre,
Po Lam Estate, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 8, Block 2 & Shop 9, Block 3, G/F,
Verbena Heights, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 3, King Lam Shopping Centre,
King Lam Estate, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 126-127, 1/F, The Lane, 15 Pui Shing Road,
Hang Hau, Tseung Kwan O

]
Phone no.

2856 8638

2856 8607
2856 8627

2350 4863

2323 8123

2856 8629

2856 8670

2856 8605

2856 8694

2856 8658

2856 8632

2856 8690

2856 8671

BHE

Phone no.

2856 8610

2856 8643

2856 8619

2856 8667

136 KPEEBEBRA A
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



R (8
New Territories (Continued)

b 31F

Address

1 BB ED RO — EA R 5 18204 R 207 A%
15 E RS PRSI B S IR 5 5 — [BRO25R &
DHEEREERES R FTE35E

YW H KB B L ZFEB3S

D HESEIE325H

WS — IR B S T 104-107 12 122-124 5748

PHEBELHEREST —E5-891H

D H B LT EE6085: F 8 L ES = E364A%

RIS IBERE RS54

ABBEEUEEDHE 2202918

MeEERWERRES 11450 T

) 28 B A0 AN AT 8 5% 6 BE HF — HIG 235k 4

195 % ER 05— JE86-88, 51B, 52C3 4

LERRFHBRRPLI-655 L

KB RE EKES 21820155 6

ERFE W B % 25-2855 4

FREFTBRFHSH T —E1185%

EXRABBEE KRR EE_H &
1015k 48

Shop Nos. 204 & 207A, Level 2, Metro City Phase |,
Tseung Kwan O

Shop No. R02 on Second Level of the Commercial
Development of Metro Town, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 3, Commercial Block 1, Kwong Yuen Estate,
Shatin

B35, Stationer Restaurant, Tai Wai Railway Station,
Shatin

Shop 32, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin

Shop 104-107 & 122-124, G/F,
Ngan Shing Commercial Centre, Shatin

Shop Nos. 5-8 on Level 2 of Sunshine Bazaar,
Ma On Shan

Shop No. 364A, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza,
Ma On Shan

Shop 5, Wan Tau Tong Shopping Centre,
Wan Tau Tong Estate, Tai Po

Shop 202, 2/F. Fu Shin Shopping Centre,
Fu Shin Estate, Tai Po

Shop 114, G/F, Wah Ming Shopping Centre,
Wah Ming Estate, Fanling

Shop G23, Regentville Phase I, 8 Wo Mun Street,
Luen Wo Hui, Fanling

Shop Nos. 51B, 52C, 86-88 on Level 2,
Fanling Town Centre, Fanling

Tin Ping Cooked Food Centre, Stall Nos. 1-6,
Tin Ping Estate, Sheung Shui

Shop 201, Level 2, Landmark North, Sheung Shui

Shop Nos. 25 to 28, Podium Floor,
Choi Yuen Shopping Centre, Choi Yuen Estate,
Sheung Shui

Shop LG118, Cheung Hang Shopping Centre,
Cheung Hang Estate, Tsing Yi

Shop No.101 on 1/F, Greenfield Garden,
Commercial Centre at Phase 2,
No.1 Fung Shue Wo Road, Tsing Yi

B

Phone no.

2856 8692

2856 8696

2856 8613

2856 8622

2856 8641

2856 8647

2856 8664

2856 8634

2856 8624

2856 8699

2856 8617

2856 8653

2856 8666

2856 8608

2856 8639

2856 8697

2856 8616

2856 8684
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Shop No.2, On Yam Shopping Centre,
On Yam Estate, Kwai Chung

Shops 209-211, Fu Pik House, Tai Wo Hau Estate,
Tsuen Wan

Portion of 2/F, Fou Wah Centre, 210 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan

Shop 3A1,3/F., City Landmark I, 68 Chung On Street,
Tsuen Wan

Shop 213, Leung King Shopping Centre,
Leung King Estate, Tuen Mun

Shop 106, Commercial Centre, Kin Sang Estate,
Tuen Mun

Shops 69-74, Chi Lok Fa Yuen, Tuen Mun

Shops CX3-5, Siu Lun Court Shopping Centre,
Siu Lun Court, Tuen Mun

Shops 118-119, G/F, Hanford Plaza,
333 Castle Peak Road, Tuen Mun

Shop Nos. 3B, 5B, 6-9, 16-17A on 1/F,
Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase Il, Tuen Mun

Shop No. 65, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road,
Tuen Mun

G/F & 1/F, Winland Building, Shui Che Kwun Street,
Yuen Long

Shops 105-107, Long Ping Commercial Centre,
Long Ping Estate, Yuen Long

Shop A168, Kingswood Richly Plaza, Tin Shui Wai,
Yuen Long

Shop Nos. G83, G83A, G88 & G88A on
G/F of Phase 1, Kingswood Ginza,
12-18 Tin Yan Road, Tin Shui Wai

1/F, Yuen Long Commercial Centre,
18-24 Kau Yuk Road, Yuen Long

Unit No. 7T090, Departures Check-in Hall,
Passenger Terminal Building, Hong Kong
International Airport, No. 1 Cheong Hong Road,
Lantau

BE

Phone no.

2481 5017

2856 8620

2856 8614

2856 8626

2856 8612

2856 8618

2856 8625

2856 8631

2856 8635

2856 8668

2856 8686

2856 8609

2856 8630

2856 8636

2856 8693

2856 8649

2856 8698
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Ground Floor, Datan Edifice, Heping Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen

Shop Nos. 1028-1034, on Level 2,
Luohu Commercial Plaza, Guangchang South
Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen

Left Wing, Lobby, G/F, Wanchai Pop Harbour,
Hongji Mansion, Dongmen Zhong Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen

M/F, District A, Railway Station Building,
Luohu District, Shenzhen

North Wing, Ground Floor, Junyue Court,
9 Yannan Road, Futian District,
Shenzhen

Shop No. GA-23, Ground Floor,
Lobby of Railway Station of East Guangzhou,
Guangzhou

Shop 0304B, Basement 1, Hengbao Plaza,
133 Baohua Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou

Basement 1, Xin Du Hui, 234 Zhong Shan Liu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou

Shop A01, Ground Floor and North East Wing,
First Floor, 518 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou

Shop 1WS059, Basement 1, Guangzhou Dongman
Xincheng Plaza, 1 Jixiang Road, Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou

G/F, 4th Mansion, 48A Zhichun Road
Haidian District, Beijing

Shop 6F-02, Joy City, Xidang, Xicheng District,
Beijing

B

Phone no.

755-2556 8140

755-8232 6136

755-8230 8080

755-8233 9123

755-8304 3383

020-6130 0267

020-8124 2908

020-8130 7658

020-3878 8803

020-8333 8821

010-5873 1592

010-5971 6101
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Open Café, Level 1, Maritime Square, Tsing Vi

Shop No. 64, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road,
Tuen Mun

Shop Nos. 307-308, Siu Sai Wan Shopping Centre,
Chai Wan

Shop 12, Block 3, Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre
Kwong Yuen Estate, Shatin

Shop 302, Level 3, Maritime Square, Tsing Yi

Shop Nos. $37-538, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North),
1 Kornhill Road, Quarry Bay

B

Phone no.
2856 8681

2856 8676

B

Phone no.

2965 8662

2856 8673

B

Phone no.
2856 8674

2856 8648
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